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INDEPENDENCE
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Independence: a core reason why the work of the FRC is so effective in
strengthening investor protection in Hong Kong and the city’s reputation FRC =555
as an international financial centre. Its independence allows the FRC to
operate fairly, impartially and consistently, without influence from auditing
professionals, listed entities, or political groups. Add to this accountability,
robustness and transparency, and the FRC stands fair and square as
upholder of the highest quality standards in the financial reporting of
listed entities in Hong Kong. Committed to ongoing auditors’ regulatory
reform in Hong Kong, the FRC is working towards benchmarking the
regime against international standards while keeping it appropriate for
the local context.

BYM  URERBEAETIMNBEERNREERERETBERBERE
MPLNEE  Hh—ARRAREAENEYY - BYUMEMBERFEE
HUAFRAER—HERNEE  FRENEX - L ERIBUGEREN
FE - FTREGHEMN  BRUREBPE  REQLAFAENRA - £F
BETERSUARBSEZNUBER - AR T EESEE BB
EEFENREI  UEENFSEBREERVIEAHTHEE -




Contents

H &%

Chairman’s Statement

FIEWwE

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

TR GRS

FRC Members (as at 30 November 2014)
ERBKE (20144 11 A 30 H)
Profiles of FRC Members

B TEIE =R BB T

FRC Members (as at 1 December 2014)
BERBKE (R2014 412 A1 8)
Corporate Governance

wEEn

Report of the Director of Audit

B BERWE

Financial Statements

LIpE e

Operations Review

E{E[DER

Honorary Advisory Panel

HEREME

Membership of Board and Panels
ZEehEEEKE

10
22
24
32
34
50
52
63
90

91

B EIRE 1
20144 3R



Chairman’s
Statement

FEHRE

“The FRC is playing a vital part in enhancing
protection for investors, increasing investor
confidence, and contributing to the development
of Hong Kong’s financial markets.

ABRINBREERERELSE  BESE
{6 - A REESSET BNEE LTS - 99

Hong Kong is one of the world’s leading financial and business centres.
This is a status it has worked hard to achieve, and one that demands to be
protected. The FRC plays a multi-faceted role in this endeavour. Through
its dedication to strengthening the regulatory oversight of auditors and
upholding the quality of financial reporting for listed entities, the FRC is
playing a vital part in enhancing protection for investors, increasing investor
confidence, and contributing to the development of Hong Kong’s financial
markets.

The FRC has its origins from concerns that arose not too many years
ago about corporate governance, financial reporting and audit practices
among large businesses, issues which at the time had a major impact on
investor confidence in global markets. In response to these issues came
new expectations from the public: they demanded that auditors should
be better regulated, by an oversight body that acted independently of the
accounting profession and was transparent, robust and accountable. Since
its foundation, the FRC has worked to fulfil that role. It has gained growing
recognition both from the industry and the general public for the way in
which it has dedicated itself effectively to combating auditing irregularities
and non-compliance with accounting requirements in the financial
statements of listed entities.
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Overview of the Year

The year 2014 has been a particularly diverse and engaging one for
the FRC and other financial regulators in Hong Kong; full of challenges,
opportunities, and new directions. Earlier in the year, we were kept fully
engaged by a number of media reports suggesting that the financial
statements of certain listed entities in Hong Kong may have contained
auditing irregularities and non-compliance with accounting requirements.
We monitored these reports very closely, in cooperation with other financial
regulators, and followed our proven procedures for following up on such
cases.

On a different note, in June 2014 the Government launched a public
consultation exercise called “Proposals to Improve the Regulatory Regime
for Listed Entity Auditors” in Hong Kong (the Consultation Paper), the
first major step in the long-discussed process for reforming the auditor
regulatory framework.

Clearly, the Government’s proposals will widen the role and functions of the
FRC, and we therefore submitted a detailed response to the Consultation
Paper to the Government. Our response, which took into account
international best practices and the experience of overseas regulators, as
well as the realities of our local auditor regulatory framework, was very
much developed from the perspective of general public interest.

Background to the FRC’s Submission

The FRC’s submission in response to the Consultation Paper was the outcome
of many years of studying and discussing the issue. Over recent years we
have devoted much in the way of time and resources in our efforts to assist
the Government’s initiatives for enhancing Hong Kong’s regulatory regime for
auditors. Indeed, representatives from the FRC have been attending relevant
conferences and seminars to stay abreast of global developments relating to
audit oversight since our establishment in 2007. These have included global
conferences on auditor regulation hosted by the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board and the European Commission (EC). Our representatives have
also met with EC and the International Forum of Independent Audit Regulators
(IFIAR) officials to gather further information about their requirements, and have
continued to meet regularly with Government figures here in Hong Kong to
update them on the international situation.

| became Chairman of the FRC in October 2012; just two months later,
in December, we set up the Independent Auditor Oversight Reform
Committee (IAORC). As its name suggests, the primary function of this
committee is to oversee matters relating to the reform of auditor oversight
systems in Hong Kong. For the past two years, the IAORC has been
providing our Council with advice and recommendations which have
proved extremely useful in our efforts to assist the Government to improve
the auditor regulatory regime in Hong Kong.

FERE
HRPBERBREEEMSRHEEXRBMS - 2014F 2
LREICRN—F  RHKE - BB IR - KERFD
TRERERRGMIENE T LHEROM B MR EFE
BATETRRTENEGHREETE - AREDEIIEHER
B PLREEMEREERBAE  BRARTZERNER
RAEZFERE -

F—hE > BRER2014F6 HEE B (B LM ERZH
BhESE I E M) RAQARENA RAXM)  ER/ERN
ZHMEEGENENR  BHNEEE —F -

BT EZESEREARMBE MBI - Bt - RAIK2EH
REREMERBIEERBNER  URAER N BEE
EHIENERE AR RAELE  YBFW@BAXMH

RXBRE -

AERXERENE=R
ARRBAXMRINELAERARDYBEMEBETTZF
MERARBOKAR - ARAFRMAERHLER - HHIK
FRHETT INSR &8 2 BR B B2 8 I E 1) T4 - KR 82007 F R 3L
AR —ERERRMEFEENEREY  BE2HEH
GHELMTE  BEEEITARSHEEZEGREBINE
SeRRNBERETEESS BATKEEABRNZEE R
BYEBMEERBERRENEESRE  E—F 7 HMOMIN
2k FMMEREFTBRTEEEE - MM BEEZ
HENEE R -

BR2012F10A LA BERDER - RRFI2AKLE
VEIEENEZET - BEER  BUBITEENEZE
CERERAEEENEENEXEHBEEE - BUBAEE
HELZESNBEMNFRANBERBRERNERLER ¥
AEBYBNELESZEMEETEMSIEERA -

B EIRE
20144 3R 3



Chairman’s Statement continuea

ERBE @

Shaping the future of the regulatory regime for auditors in Hong Kong involves
being aware of and understanding international standards and practices in this
area. To help in this process, in March 2013 the FRC commissioned Deloitte
LLP (UK) to carry out a comparative study on independent auditor oversight
practices around the world. This international comparative study, published
in October 2013, revealed that auditor regulators of major jurisdictions such
as the United Kingdom, the United States, Canada, Australia and Singapore,
were all independent of the profession, and that they had authority over (at
least) all auditors of listed entities.

The transitional period granted to Hong Kong by the European Union (EU)
for achieving audit equivalence with the audit standards of EU jurisdictions
expired in June 2013. The period was not extended.

The FRC held several dialogues with stakeholders between November
2013 and September 2014, from which it collected views on the way
forward for Hong Kong'’s auditor regulatory regime. These discussions were
held with representatives from the Government, the audit profession and
legislators, among many others.

In June 2014, the Government published the Consultation Paper. The FRC
submitted its response to the Government on 18 September, along with some
key recommendations. On the same day we held a press briefing in which we
shared the FRC’s recommendations with the media and the public. The press
briefing was very well received, and as a result the FRC’s position in relation to
the Consultation Paper has been widely and clearly disseminated.

The FRC’s Submission

A detailed version of our response to the Government’s Consultation Paper
is available on the FRC website, but | would like to summarize some of the
key points here. The Consultation Paper began by outlining the proposed
overall objective of the reform: namely, to enhance the independence
of Hong Kong’s auditor regulatory regime by benchmarking it against
international standards and practices, while also ensuring that it continues
to be appropriate in the local context. This is an objective that the FRC
fundamentally agrees with.

Independence: Paramount to Audit Regulation

In our submission, we made it clear that, in our view, any reform should
at the least make Hong Kong eligible for membership of the IFIAR and
give it a status of regulatory equivalence with the EC. This would then
enable the FRC to enter into reciprocal arrangements with overseas
regulators, and develop workable arrangements for cross-border regulatory
cooperation. The result would not only enhance international recognition
for our auditors, but would also bring Hong Kong into line with some 40
jurisdictions around the world that currently already meet the regulatory or
equivalence requirements of the EC, and are also members of the IFIAR.
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To achieve these outcomes, it is our view that the governing body of
Hong Kong’s auditor regulator must be wholly independent from the audit
profession. The FRC meets this requirement. Currently, most members
of the Council of the FRC are lay members, and in the future the majority
of them will also be non-practitioners. Independence should also be
guaranteed by appropriate funding arrangements. Funding for the FRC in
the future must be secure, stable and free from undue influence by the
audit profession. This will ensure that the FRC is able to meet the relevant

international requirements on independence.

Future Role of the FRC

The Consultation Paper proposed enlarging the regulatory remit of the FRC
in different areas, and this is a proposal we support in our submission. Apart
from its existing investigatory powers under the Financial Reporting Council
Ordinance (Cap 588) (FRCO), we believe the FRC should be given direct
responsibility for the inspection and discipline of auditors of public interest
entities (PIEs). We also support the proposal to give the FRC the role of
overseeing the statutory functions proposed for the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), by which it would handle registration,
continuing professional development and standard-setting for professional
ethics, auditing and assurance related to PIEs.

The Consultation Paper proposed that the new regulatory regime would
cover auditors of PIEs, but that these would initially be defined in a
way that included only listed entities. We are generally supportive of
this proposal, but have highlighted in our submission that the European
Statutory Audit Directive requires oversight of the regulation of all statutory
auditors. Indeed, some larger capital markets around the world already
define PIEs more broadly, and it is thought that the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants is also likely to extend the scope of its
definition of PIEs sometime in the future. Our recommendation on this
point is therefore that any new legislation should be flexible enough so
that, in future, the definition of PIEs can be easily amended if required. This
will enable us to benchmark the new auditor regulatory regime adopted
by Hong Kong against international standards, and minimize the risk of it

failing to meet EC equivalence requirements.

These comments encapsulate the heart of the FRC’s response to the
Consultation Paper. In essence, our submission encouraged the Financial
Services and the Treasury Bureau to vigorously pursue the establishment
of an auditor regulatory regime for Hong Kong that is at least on par with
those of other major international financial centres.
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Chairman’s Statement continuea
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FRC held a press briefing on 18 September
2014 on its submission in response to the
Consultation Paper.
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(From left) Ms Wincey Lam (Deputy Chief
Executive Officer), Dr John Poon (Chairman)
and Mr Mark Dickens (Chief Executive
Officer) hosted the press briefing.
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Maintaining Excellence in Operations

| am honoured to have been reappointed as Chairman of the FRC for
a second term. When it comes to fulfilling my role as Chairman, | place
great emphasis on three key qualities: impartiality, transparency and
professionalism. | am constantly seeking to reinforce them in the culture
of the FRC. It is these qualities, | believe, that have taken us so far and
contributed most significantly to our success over the years.

In terms of maintaining both its impartiality and its transparency, the FRC
has in place a robust system of internal controls, checks and balances,
and accountability and audit procedures. Care and diligence is a special
hallmark of the actions of our Council Members, as they work to ensure
that all matters handled by the FRC are dealt with free from any conflict of
interest (as defined by the FRCO). In response to some difficulties we had
been experiencing in achieving quorums for Council meetings, a problem
that arose when some Council Members were unable to take part in the
meetings on occasions when they had declared an interest in the matter
under discussion, in January 2014 temporary Council Members were
appointed. This initiative has enabled us to achieve the necessary quorums
in 2014.

The Honorary Advisory Panel and the Financial Reporting Review Panel
(FRRP) have each played important roles in ensuring excellence across
our operations. The two panels have provided us with professional advice
regarding cases throughout the year, in the process helping enhance the
standard of our work. In addition, the Process Review Panel (PRP) carried
out its role of reviewing a representative selection of the cases handled by
the FRC in 2014 to ensure that all were handled strictly in accordance with
the FRC’s established internal procedures. The PRP targets to publish its
annual report in March 2015.

Multi-faceted Collaboration

Throughout the year, the FRC has been proactive in meeting and
communicating with stakeholders. Particularly important were a number
of three-way meetings with the Government and the HKICPA, at which
we were able to put forward our views on ways of improving the
regulatory regime for auditors of listed entities. These views were based
on the international comparative study on independent audit oversight
commissioned by the FRC, and on discussions held at meetings of the
IAORC and the Council.
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Chairman’s Statement continuea

ERBE @

The Deputy CEO and | made visits to the Ministry of Finance (MoF) and the
China Securities Regulatory Commission in the Mainland during the year, where
we updated on regulatory developments for auditors in Hong Kong and on
our submission in response to the Consultation Paper, and shared ideas about
cross-border cooperation. In particular, we discussed issues around the gaining
of access to audit working papers for Mainland companies listed in Hong
Kong. Another key topic was the MoF’s exposure draft relating to provisional
regulations covering those certified public accountant practices in Hong
Kong that carry out cross-border audit services in the Mainland. Generally,
the FRC has remained abreast of debates and new developments globally by
participating in a number of international conferences, seminars and workshops
throughout the year. We will continue to pursue cross-border cooperation
initiatives to enhance the performance of our investigative function.

Public Engagement Initiatives

One of our top priorities in carrying out our work is to strengthen our
communication with stakeholders. We do this by promoting our role
and functions, and reporting on the progress of our work and any new
developments, in as open and transparent a manner as possible. For
instance, in May 2014 the CEO, Deputy CEO and | attended the meeting
of the Panel on Financial Affairs of the Legislative Council to report on our
work and answer questions from legislators. Together with other senior
FRC executives, | also made a number of presentations to auditing and
professional bodies on topics such as the role and functions of the FRC,
and on matters relating to corporate governance and audit regulation.

During the year, we also launched a number of initiatives to further enhance
our public transparency and accessibility. These included a major revamp of
our website and the development of new social media platforms, due to be
launched later in 2015. We also improved our Access to Information Policy.

Changes to the Council

The composition of our Council changed slightly over the year. Council
Member Ms Connie Lau resigned with effect from 14 March 2014 to
take up her new position as the Ombudsman; her replacement, Ms
Eirene Yeung, was appointed on 3 June 2014. Three Council Members
retired from the Council on 30 November 2014, being the end of their
appointment period: they were Mr Roger Best, Ms Teresa Ma and Mr John
E Strickland. In consequence, three new Council Members — Mr Chan
Tze Ching, Mr Wilson Fung and Mr Wong Kai Man — were appointed on
1 December 2014. | would like to thank the three retiring Members of the
Council for their valuable contributions, and for the active and committed
roles they have played in furthering the work of the FRC. At the same time,
| extend a warm welcome to the new Council Members and look forward
to working closely with them in the future.

8 Financial Reporting Council
2014 Annual Report

AANEBTREHETEYRARTEEFEEEEERES
MREREH NHAFTERBMEENERBER  ARARY
BAXMHRZNERE  UBEAFEERBRER - #iM
et BAREEE LT A RN ET TEERNFEE
AR BB AR (& AR TS RS IR AT BAT T E TR
E(BCKERR)) MEE - BEME - AREF2MZER
REH - MRERITEY  EMRFEBLRERBE - AR

BEBHESERAE  ANBERNAETERR -

SRARSHE
ARER-HEEEZTFERERNENREE - Bt - HIFIE
NARRBEANEE  SEAROBAENERE  ARERT
TR R R B - RETTHUAREL M BITT AR E N 201456 A K
EEMREBLZESSRERTIF MEZSIRMA - A
ARNEEITHRABHSRET REERBLETEHR - &M
BRARBNBERBEE  CEEARBAEEFHE -

ARFANERNEETE-—FRSARERENTRE - 2
RETRBEEARE TRMNEH RERT S - WHR2015
FARA - WA - KBITMEFTREE B o

MR ERBNES

FRN - MBERBKERANE - ABK S 2IFHM 2 7
2014F3A14BBE - HERFEE  MEENIBRZ L
TH2014F6 A3AKERE - AREP =HER2014F 11
AS0R (BMEHIEMA) BREMBKERS - H B AKHHAME
£ BERAZTRBERLE - MR FEREE  BRESL
A REMRELRNR014FE12A1BRZEAKRBHKE -
RAFELRHREKENEETR - UREHELRRIIER
| - &S RIBHARTS o BRI - R ARZUEE I A R K
8 - B IS 1E o

/



The Way Ahead

Effective auditor oversight continues to play a crucial part in ensuring the
reliability and integrity of the financial reporting process. This assurance
is in turn fundamental to the successful operation of any financial market,
and an essential part of sustaining investor confidence. Given Hong Kong’s
status as a major international financial centre, it is vital that it has an
auditor regulatory regime that is considered to be independent and robust
by major international bodies such as the International Monetary Fund,
and that fully safeguards the interests of the investing public. At this stage,
we should be aiming to finalize an independent and robust regulatory
framework for auditors of publicly listed entities. It is important that such a
framework is both appropriate for Hong Kong, and is benchmarked against
international standards and best practices.

A number of changes to the auditor regulatory regime in Hong Kong look
set to take place over the next few years, some of which will directly
impact on the role of the FRC. Whatever the changes ahead, we remain
confident in our ability to fulfil our core mission and objectives. For this,
thanks are due to our Council Members, our Honorary Advisory Panel, the
FRRP and the PRP for the great support they have provided. As always,
| also thank all our FRC staff, for the high levels of professionalism and
dedication they have displayed so consistently throughout.

ERRK
BRNBREEEE ARV BERIEFOAEREE2SH -
EEDEZERRAR - IRREINYBEREFESRTS
KREENER  tERFHREGFLNEE R - BBIER
IZNEBRSETO  EREEEESZaAR T ERRA
B nEREEESAR) RA/BLRRARENEZER
EREENGD  REWEE - ?ﬁfF‘iﬁ%EﬁFﬁ%‘AEﬁﬁﬁ%
&E’Ji ERVBMEESERAR  HENEEETS
2 BENABEREERREML -

RREF  BENZEMEERELUEMNE o
SHBBERRNACELERTE - B AKNANRE
ERRBETEZ O MEKBRITE - BARWEDS - &
ARBUEHVBERBDKE - 2 EBEMEE  YHERBSR
BEREFERZEGNANS - I AAHABET
— MR HIAZ R R M RERITRE - RRROEH -

Dr John Poon, JP
EMEREL - KFmE
Chairman

T

12 March 2015
201543 A12H

B EIRE
20144 3R 9



Chief Executive
Officer’s Report
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“ The decisions we make are free from any
influence by members of the auditing profession,
listed entities, or political groups.
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High quality financial reporting has a powerful and positive knock-on effect
— for listed companies themselves, for individual investors, and for society
in general. To begin with, good financial reporting improves corporate
governance standards in listed entities. That in turn strengthens the
confidence of investors in the credibility and reliability of the information
that listed entities provide. More generally, the reputation of and the trust
placed in the capital market as a whole is enhanced.

A key figure in achieving these end results is the auditor. Auditors play
a vital “gatekeeper” role by ensuring that the financial representations
provided by listed entities are unbiased and accurate. Clearly, to make
this happen, auditors must all work to the same standards. This is why an
independent auditor regulatory regime is vital for capital markets. It is a
valuable way of maintaining high standards of professionalism in auditing.

Financial Reporting Council
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Independence is at the heart of the role of the FRC. The FRC performs its
various functions in a fair, impartial and consistent manner as a matter of
course. The decisions we make are free from any influence by members
of the auditing profession, listed entities, or political groups. To uphold
the highest standards of quality in the financial reporting of listed entities
in Hong Kong, one of the roles of the FRC is to investigate any auditing
irregularities, and enquire into any non-compliance with accounting
requirements. In addition to these functions of investigation and enquiry,
over the past year we have been assisting the Government in its efforts to
improve the regulatory regime for listed entity auditors in Hong Kong.

| am pleased to report here on the progress we have made over the past
year.

Review of Complaints

In 2014, the FRC received 33 pursuable complaints. Among the complaints
we received in 2014, five related to auditing or reporting irregularities, and
three related to non-compliance with accounting requirements. A further 25
involved both auditing or reporting irregularities and non-compliance with
accounting requirements.
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2014 2013
Anonymous complaints REERATHIRF 1 -
Complaints from the public PNENEOE 1
Complaints from HKEx REBZFEE R 6 13
Complaints from the HKICPA REABRSTEAEHIRR 5
Complaints from both the HKICPA and KEEEEFMATNESR
anonymous source A TR R 2 -
Complaints from the SFC KB B EGIRHR 18 2
Complaints from both the SFC and the public K B#EEE N ARIEHR -
Total 5T 33 20
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Report continued
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In 2014, we handled all 22 complaints brought forward from the previous — FMM20145F HEIE22RMN L —FE R EAREF + LAK33
year, along with 33 pursuable complaints received during the year. As a FAFREENIRERF  BmERMAISRALD/EM - &
result, 15 investigations/enquiries were initiated. By the end of 2014, 14  Z2014FF K - NBINEEM14RIEF - FEH A HR2015%F
of the complaints were under review. The FRC is aiming to complete the — FHATTK °

review of these complaints by the middle of 2015.

2014 2013
Under review at beginning of year FYIEHFEZR 22 9
Pursuable complaints received BT IRE R 33 20
Suspended complaints T EMEMER - ()
Recommenced complaints EFABENNESR 2 3

Completed with no follow-up B S 2 HER
action ETEMMER (28) (1)
Initiated investigation/enquiry ERAE/ATNESER (15) (4)
Under review at end of year FRMEEMPHEZE 14 22

Review of complaints
ERBRF
(2010-2014)
57
28 43
20
9 9
15
7 8 6
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
== Completed - Handled during the year
=154 FREE
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Review of Modified Auditors’ Reports

The FRC screened all 171 modified auditors’ reports issued by auditors of
Hong Kong listed entities in 2014 (2013:168). Of this total, 94 (2013:100)
related to emphasis of matter that did not include any apparent auditing
irregularities or non-compliance with accounting requirements, and these
therefore did not require further review. The FRC reviewed all the other 77
(2013:68) modified auditors’ reports.

The current practice of the FRC is to follow up directly on cases where an
audit qualification in a modified auditor’s report indicates prior period errors
that were not identified in the prior period report. In 2014, five modified
auditors’ reports required such direct follow-up action by the FRC.

EZFFERERRRHMBRE
ARBEES LMERR2014FHHNE2HIEERBEREZ
HAh RS 17110 (20134 : 16815) + E 941 (20134 :
10019) B REEEE  WEBBENETTETARTERK
BHHEEE  AUNEFTEEE—SEN - ARTMATHM
7717 (20134 : 681n) IFMIRB B R LR RS -

MIEEREBERREMBREANETERRTABENBES
MR E NHEABEMEOER - ARRITHERBEERE
BRAEZR - R2014%5 - HERMEBRE T ARHEREH
ERMEKRETE -

2014 2013

Under review at beginning of year FHEFP R EZE 13 3

Initiated during the year FRRMAEFHNESR 77 68
Completed with no follow-up B 5 M ZEREURE

action TEIMREZE (68) (87)

Required follow-up action EEREUREITEAESR (5) (1)

Under review at end of year FRIDEERFHER 17 13

Risk-based Financial Statements Review
Programme

The FRC’s risk-based financial statements review programme has been
in place since 2011. The criteria for selecting financial statements for
review are determined by the FRC before each review cycle begins;
these are based on its assessment of prevailing risk factors. Under the
2013/2014 review cycle, the programme selects accountants’ reports of
newly listed entities which significantly underperformed in the first year of
listing, financial statements from listed entities that frequently change their
directors or senior management, and those listed entities which engage
audit firms that are small in relation to the complexity of the audit. In
addition, the financial statements of listed entities that have been subject to
intervention by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) or the
Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) may be reviewed, as may those
of long suspended listed entities. The selection criteria also include those
financial statements containing significant prior period errors, since these
suggest that investors relying on these prior period financial statements
may have been misled.

RiIZRERMES B RKREFRTE

REHR201ERRETIRBRBRME M BRERENAE - 2B
REEEMBERMAA - RTEEROERERE - EE M
B BERFRETEMALER - 2013/2014FEH - £
FrEMEMNPBRERE LT EFXERNRBERTERN
TEENGFAMRE KEEREEISNEEENLTE
AR NG RN TE TR BT EE M £
B o MON AR REMENIMBRENEREEISHR
Ee)NANLTESR  URRHEHROLEHEE - ma%
BIJR B IR BT BA IR B R SHER W 5 AT AR IR B H M I 5 3
i‘%o

3 i B 3
=)

B EIRE
20144 %]
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The FRC, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and HKEx all share the process of reviewing the financial statements
of those Hong Kong listed companies that elect to adopt Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises (ASBE). To ensure the review process
is carried out as efficiently as possible, the FRC asks external reviewers
to review financial statements and accountants’ reports of newly listed
companies, financial statements prepared under ASBE, and those
containing complex or contentious accounting/auditing issues. Internally,
the FRC itself reviews financial statements with prior period adjustments
suggesting a lack of adequate professional skepticism.

In 2014, the FRC completed reviews of 25 of the 87 sets of financial
statements selected in the 2013/2014 review cycle (running from July 2013
to December 2014). The FRC expected to complete the reviews of the
remaining 62 sets of financial statements by the middle of 2015.

For the 2015 cycle beginning in January 2015, the FRC plans to review 75
sets of financial statements. This number represents approximately 5% of
all Hong Kong listed entities.

All financial statements reviewed by external reviewers are re-examined
by staff of the FRC to ensure that all apparent non-compliance with
accounting requirements have been dealt with consistently.

HRERMC(EXGAHER) OFB LT RARNPBHRE
PHERRDETEGHMAG R BEXMARDEEMI(E -
REREHNRE > ARRKIISEMABREENHFT LA
AWM B RRANG RS - HR(EESAER) FEY
BwME - URESEMFAFHRENSH/ETRENYT
BE - ARMANFARBREEMAE LR KRERTERNEE
REREEETEA TESERIRATABH BN BRE -

7N B 782013/2014% B 18 B (FH201347 A £20145F121)
HESTM I BIREK - N2014F 2B EP25M T ERE
TEEAR 2015 FE F R B 88 620 IS MR TR T1E -

2015FFEBM2015% 1 ARG - AR EIHME75(% B 5 HR
£ HERBLTEERNSS o

SNEPEBIA B ERMP BHRRELARERNER - BRA—
BOABREAETENEAREER

2014 2013
Under review at beginning of year FHREEP NI B RE 42 62
Initiated based on review of modified = IEEREE RAZEGED
auditors’ reports HEMEFANER - 1
Initiated based on other selection criteria BRI HC fih B feR 1 T R R BV (Bl 22 54 32
Completed with no follow-up BEEKMmES ZRERETE
action w RIS TR 3% (16) (24)
Issued letters of advice BHREEZNER K (3) ©)
Required follow-up review HEREEMOMEHRE (15) (20)
Under review at end of year FRDESRMP NP BRE 62 42
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Investigations

During the year, the FRC initiated 22 investigations and handled 10
investigations brought forward from the previous year. In total, four
investigations were completed. The investigation reports identifying
auditing irregularities have been referred to the HKICPA to determine if
disciplinary action is warranted. By the end of 2014, 28 investigations
were in progress. The majority of these investigations are expected to be

completed in 2015.

At the end of 2014, the number of investigations still outstanding showed
a marked increase over those outstanding at the end of the previous year.
One of the reasons for this is that there was a significant increase in the
number of complaints received in the second half of 2013 and in 2014,
resulting in the initiation of several investigations in 2014. Another reason
is that a number of the investigations outstanding as at the end of 2014
involve highly complex issues and financial statements of several years,
which have required more time for evidence to be collected and information
to be reviewed. In addition, some of the FRC’s manpower and resources
were diverted in 2014 to handle work arising from the proposed reform of
the auditor regulatory regime for listed entities.

For summaries of completed cases, please refer to the “Operations
Review” section.

EH22FRFHESMHEREE F—FEERBNI0
: ,\ﬁﬁﬁzllfl?ﬁﬂéfl’r c AREMEBGEAIA

EERBRHNNEFTIETHS UEEREHER
B e BE20M4FFE - ARNAEMEIT28RFEE
ES ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%2015$%ﬁ27§%ﬁ’ﬁ§§§1%§ °

R2014FFR  ARNEFAEHEREEREFFREEE
e Eh—(ARERARBNR2013F N HF K2014FEEH
AR AR B KRB N - EH04EERZRAEER - B

—fARERBAR2014AFFERDEREHNEZR - FRBERM
B RS EFENMBRE  ALFEEZRRERERR

BEEER o BN - REPR2014FR/ELAF RERENA L
TEEREMEERENEEREENTE -

B EKHAEEENME - F20H EFLE] —5 -

2014 2013
In progress at beginning of year FUREPHEZR 10
Initiated in the year FRRMAAEESR 22
Completed SRR E RS 4 (%)
In progress at end of year FIRMEREFHEZR 28 10

B EIRE
20144 %]
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| am pleased to note that the HKICPA took disciplinary action in March
2014 against a certified public accountant (practising) and a firm of certified
public accountants, after receiving the investigation report from the FRC
about misstatements of earnings per share in the accountants’ report and
the audited financial statements. The FRC would like to remind auditors
and preparers of financial statements of the importance of observing all
relevant auditing, accounting and reporting standards in their work.

HMAEERBEFMAENRIAABEN AR SFTENRE
REECUBRRPERRASERBNNRFEHER - R®
20143 A Y — B XS R — K S EBIIRIRLEE
B o AREIREZEM LM BMRERE  RNETIE
s A ZBRS 2V B AR M AR B - At R R

Progress of investigation cases

REERVER
(2010-2014)

32
17
13 15
8 9
5 5 4
1
A
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
-- Completed =& Handled during the year
B FAERIR
Enquiries B

During the year, the FRC completed one enquiry brought forward from last
year, and initiated one new enquiry.

The FRC requested the listed entity involved in the completed enquiry
to remove the non-compliance with accounting requirements that
was identified. The listed entity complied with the FRC’s request by
retrospectively restating the comparative amounts in its interim report and
consolidated financial statements for the relevant periods. For a summary
of the completed case, please refer to the “Operations Review” section.

ERRFATK TR E—FEERMANEAER - URE
fl—=EMER -

ARERETRNEAEERF LN ETERBULEEINHNT
BRESHAHREEE  MELTERESREABNEN - BiBE
WEMIEEEE P IS IRE MRS B MRATIRALL
ReE HETENREE - FHE K EMERNOME - 5
S0 [E(FmER | —4 -

2014 2013
In progress at beginning of year FYEAFBER 1 3
Initiated during the year FRRMEMAESR 1 -
Completed TN E A EZR (1) @)
In progress at year end FRIDNESMFHMER 1 1
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Progress of enquiry cases

EMERNER
(2010-2014)

4

-
—

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
=== Completed =& Handled during the year
B e FARIE
Advice Letters to Listed Entities and their BHEMEERREZHEMNER K
Auditors
As one of its statutory duties, the FRC offers advice to listed entities and ~ ARHER —EEATHBE LM LT EE LA A H Eﬁzg‘é
their auditors on ways of improving the quality of their financial reporting. HBEBREZMNER - WEAJETER S HERZTE T
This is generally offered in cases where potential non-compliance with HMEHERMES]  ARBEFERULZER - EZFBR

accounting requirements does not compromise the presentation of the
financial statements. In such cases, rather than initiating an investigation or
enquiry, the FRC issues a letter of advice which generally includes findings
and suggested improvements or remedial measures for the listed entities
and/or their auditors to consider.

The FRC issued nine such letters of advice in 2014. In each case, the
letters were issued in response to complaints and the result of a review
of the listed entities’ financial statements under the risk-based financial
statements review programme.

Reviewing Financial Statements of Listed Entities
using Eligible Mainland Auditors

In the 2013 financial year, 40 Hong Kong-listed Mainland entities
(H-shares companies) opted to use eligible Mainland auditors to audit
their financial statements prepared based on ASBE. A selection of these
financial statements was included in the respective financial statements
review programmes of the FRC, HKEx and the HKICPA. No material non-
compliance with accounting requirements on the part of these listed

entities was identified during the review.

T ARTERFAATHEN  MERA LT EER/SEZHR
BhEt HE A EHER MR IR RN ER K -

RBRER AR EHREE RS M 75 WK B 51 8
EW ETEEPBERERRE  R204FEEANERE -

EHNZEECERAMZEN LTHERE
B R R =

AORES FHE R (HRAR) B E LA S8 NS
D AR IE (0 % BT ER) 4R B M0201 34 B B EF FE RIS
K% HOBARBALRS BRAREASHAARSE S
M REENNE - SMMEEEEARENE - TEE
BEE I mERAEARE TSR AT EE -

MEERE
20144 %]
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Cooperation among Regulators

The Memorandum of Understanding signed between the FRC and the
Ministry of Finance (MoF) of the Mainland in 2009 put into place an
established framework for investigative cooperation. Noting the legal
proceedings commenced by the SFC against Ernst & Young on the
production of audit papers relating to Standard Water Limited, and
the resulting decision by the Court of First Instance in May 2014, we
have been holding discussions with the MoF regarding the cooperation
arrangements as the market has expressed concerns over gaining access
to audit working papers in the Mainland. We have also been discussing
with the MoF its exposure draft on provisional regulations covering certified
public accountant practices in Hong Kong that carry out cross-border audit
services in the Mainland.

Our regular dialogue with regulators in the Mainland during the year also
included meetings with the MoF and the China Securities Regulatory
Commission. Issues of mutual concern were discussed at these meetings,
and findings were shared on the review of the financial statements of
H-share companies.

Financial Reporting Council
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On 11 June 2014, representatives from the
FRC had a meeting with officials of the MoF
to discuss issues of mutual concern.

BSER PR R N20145E6 A11 0 &
FHBNEESR  ImEHXREEDN
£E -




The FRC has continued holding regular liaison meetings with other Hong
Kong regulators, including the SFC, the HKICPA, and HKEx, with whom we
have Memoranda of Understanding.

At these meetings, the FRC shared its views on regulatory developments;
the meetings were also important in helping achieve across-the-
board efficiencies in those actions for enforcing regulations in the Hong
Kong capital market. These enhancements were on top of our regular
programmes of referrals and joint reviews of individual cases.

At the FRC’s annual joint forum with HKEx and the HKICPA held in
November 2014, representatives from the three organizations shared their
observations on the respective financial statements review programmes
with listed entities and their auditors.

Financial Review

For the 2014 financial year, the annual contribution to the FRC was
HK$19.4 million (2013: HK$18.5 million). This is sourced from our four
funding parties — the Companies Registry Trading Fund, HKEx, the HKICPA
and the SFC. The FRC recorded a deficit of HK$1.6 million in 2014 (2013:
deficit of HK$1.2 million). Total expenditure for the year amounted to
HK$21.6 million (2013: HK$20.6 million).

The FRC’s major expenditure items were staff costs of HK$19.7 million
(2013: HK$15.7 million) and audit oversight research and related expenses
of HK$0.1 million (2013: HK$2.4 million). The increase in staff costs was
attributable to an annual pay adjustment and the addition of the post of
Deputy CEO, created to help manage the increasing workload arising from
investigations and enquiries and from the independent audit oversight
reform currently in progress.

The Memorandum of Understanding setting out the funding arrangements
between the FRC and its four funding parties expired on 31 December
2014. After liaison with these funding parties and the Government, a new
Memorandum of Understanding was signed with the same four parties.
The new Memorandum of Understanding, which covers a period of five
years (from 2015 to 2019), commits the four funding parties to contributing
on an “equal share” basis. It also stipulates that their contributions will
increase by a fixed percentage of 5% every year, to cater for inflation. The
FRC budget for 2014 as approved by the Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury, which amounts to HK$26.6 million, has been used as the
baseline for determining the contribution. In addition, the Reserve Fund of
HK$20 million will continue to be rolled over in a separate account.

AREFRREGEBEERBRTEMBEEH  BHEER
ERRBECERNEES  BESIAE KB -

rREELER TRAMEERBREERRIBER - 5
LERY2HEREEEEEATEMEHETEER » WHN
ARIEEMEEREEREN EREEAREHENEZ -

ERAREEZTMEBEGHMAEN2014F 11 RPN EF
EWmELE REZZEENRRELTERLAREMS
L% BMBHRREMAINERME -

B #s A et

2014 B E - ARMMERZEE (ARZMELE
B¢ BRAT BEGHMASREFES) AR FHE
FERFA H£1,9408 78 7T (20134F : 1,850&8 8 7T) - AR
20145 813K F1608/B T (20135 : FRF1208%E L) ° F
WF X 2% 22,1608 %8 7T (20134 : 2,0608E7T) °

AEHWEEMTER A8 T A1,9708 78 7T (20134 ¢
1,5708 % 7T) AR EFHEEMEREBZ H108 5T (2013
F 1 240887T) c EINAEMEZREANRFEHHAE -
ARFIERIFTERER - BHBEERBTEIEINNASL - i
REFHTOB I BT EERNEMEENTES -

A 2N R BRI R B AR ) B R R R R SRR B R Bk PA 20145
12 A31HEM ° ABHEZNRBZWBEMESBITERE -
B BZ MR BN REEZNREERE - MR ERER
AT (2015 £2019%F) - MRBHEEAE T OB S
F o WRERFBEELME% RSB - 3 A A
ERMREBERRRIEN014FEECHIEABERTNE
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Talent Management

Talent is a vital asset for the FRC; ultimately it is the basis on which we
are able to discharge the FRC’s role and functions effectively, and thus
uphold the quality of financial reporting in Hong Kong and promote market
confidence in the integrity of this financial reporting.

The number of listed entities in Hong Kong is ever increasing; it includes
companies from a wide variety of industries, some of which are relatively
new. The FRC’s operations team regularly participates in technical
training on specific industries, in order to broaden their knowledge and
improve their handling of cases relating to companies from widely different
backgrounds and industries.

Our staff also participated in local and global conferences where they
were able to learn more about the latest trends and developments in
the international auditor regulatory landscape. In 2014, FRC delegates
attended global conferences and workshops hosted by the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board in the United States, and
the regional outreach event organized by the International Forum of
Independent Audit Regulators in Kuala Lumpur.

In order to attract and retain the best talent, we place special emphasis on
family life and the need to maintain a healthy work/life balance. The FRC is
proud of the work/life ethos it has developed, and of its status as a family-
friendly employer.
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Looking ahead, we expect changes in the regulatory regime for listed
entity auditors to take place soon. The FRC is looking forward to the new
opportunities — and the new challenges — these changes will bring, as it
takes on new responsibilities under Hong Kong’s future auditor regulatory
regime. Although there remain uncertainties in the worldwide political
and economic environment, the FRC will not stop building on its proven
strengths and all-round professionalism as an independent regulator in
the years to come. We are fully committed to continuing to discharge
our functions as efficiently and professionally as possible, in the process
helping maintain investor confidence in the financial reporting of listed
entities in Hong Kong.
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Dr John Poon, JP (re-appointment effective 15 December 2014; term expires on 14
December 2016)

Dr Poon is a solicitor and a non-executive director of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority. He was formerly the deputy chairman of Esprit Holdings
Limited until July 2008. Dr Poon served as a lay member of the council of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) from December 2005 to
December 2011 during which he was also the chairman of Professional Qualifications
Accountability Board (2009-2011) and the chairman of Governance Review Task Force
in 2011. He was a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform
(2003-2009) and the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) (2004-2010).

BHBABLT - KPP (R2014F1215BBEEEZT + (THEIZE2016F12 148 fEm)

BELTA—BEM - TRAGMEAESFTENEERIENTES - MEEBRERIKIZRERAF
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SNEE  HIRIMEEREEREE L8 EFE(009-2011) R R2011FE B EE AR FEE N E
E/E - hBERAREREFEHZE B K E(2003-2009) @ LFH LEFEESE 8(2004-2010)

Mr Roger Best, JP (appointment effective 1 December 2012 on nomination of the
HKICPA; term expired on 30 November 2014)

Mr Best is a certified public accountant. He was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from 1982 until his retirement on 31 May 2010. He is a fellow member of both the
HKICPA and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW),
and was appointed as a member of the IFRS Advisory Council in January 2013. He
was elected as president of the HKICPA in 2004. He was appointed to the Financial
Reporting Review Panel (FRRP) of the FRC from July 2007 to July 2010 and an
Honorary Adviser of the FRC from August 2010 to November 2012. He is currently an
Honorary Adviser of the FRC.

BMEBAFHL (R2012F12 A1 BEBESTMASREEM - (£HE2014511 A30H Eim)
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Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (appointment effective 1 December 2014 on the
nomination of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX); term expires on
30 November 2016)

Mr Chan is a senior advisor of The Bank of East Asia and CVC Capital Partners. Mr
Chan is a veteran banker, with over 30 years’ of banking experience covering Hong
Kong, Japan, Taiwan and Mainland China. He currently serves on the boards of
various listed companies, NGOs and government statutory bodies.

RPN SARHES  AFHE (R2014F12A1EBRBEXSREERBRAT GERA)
IRZEE  (EEZE2016511 A308 @)

BRSEAEIREIRT2IR1T R CVC Capital PartnersimARBAR o BRIEERERRITR @ FEFEFHEIRI0
FEBHEFERE  BA - aERTEE - B AEESH LT AR - SEERRBHEE
BENES -

Mr Chew Fook Aun (re-appointment effective 1 December 2012; term expires on 30
November 2015)

Mr Chew is the deputy chairman and executive director of Lai Sun Garment
(International) Limited and Lai Sun Development Company Limited, the executive
director of eSun Holdings Limited, and the chairman and executive director of Lai
Fung Holdings Limited. He has over 25 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and finance in the United Kingdom and Hong Kong. He was a vice president and
a former council member of the HKICPA. He is a certified public accountant and
a fellow member of the ICAEW and of the HKICPA. Mr Chew is a member of the
Operations Review Committee of the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) and was a member of its Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee
from January 2009 to December 2014. He served as a member of the Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform from February 2009 to January 2015 and a
member of the Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC)
from June 2007 to May 2013.

BARREE (R2012F12A1HBEEZF : (£HZE2015911 A30HEH)
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Mr Wilson Fung (appointment effective 1 December 2014 on nomination of the
HKICPA; term expires on 30 November 2016)

Mr Fung has over 17 years of experience in auditing in Hong Kong and the United
Kingdom. Having worked for Jardine Matheson for 21 years, he retired from the
company as its group financial controller in September 2014. He is a fellow member
of both the HKICPA and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a
member of the ICAEW. He was elected as president of the HKICPA in 2010. Mr Fung
is a member of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Review Tribunal, a member of the Audit Committee of West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority and a director of the Urban Renewal Fund. He was appointed
to the FRRP of the FRC as a Convenor from July 2007 to July 2013. Mr Fung is
the founding president of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association and a vice
chairman of Hong Kong Dance Company.

BHRELEE (HR2014F12B1HEBEBSTRIA
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IREEME - FHE2016511 BA30/E )

BEEERBRAEEE O 7TFEET LR SRENERER AR TIERA21F - R201459
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Ms Connie Lau, JP (appointment effective 1 December 2012; resigned on 14 March 2014)

Ms Lau, the former chief executive of the Hong Kong Consumer Council, is now the
Ombudsman of Hong Kong. She has been the chairperson of the International Advisory
Group of Experts on Consumer Protection of United Nations, the council member of
the City University of Hong Kong as well as a director of Financial Dispute Resolution
Centre. Apart from above, Ms Lau is also member of the Steering Committee on
Review of the Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities, the Consultative Group on
Health Protection Scheme of Health and Medical Development Advisory Committee,
the Steering Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower Planning
and Professional Development, the Business Studies Advisory Board of Hong Kong
University School of Professional and Continuing Education.

BB AFH T ((THIHR2012F12 A1 HEE2014F3 B 14HBEHT)
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Ms Teresa Ma (appointment effective 1 December 2012 on nomination of the SFC;
term expired on 30 November 2014)

Ms Ma is an experienced lawyer and a partner and member of the International Board
of Linklaters. She is currently serving on the Takeovers and Mergers Panel and the
Takeovers Appeal Committee of the SFC. She is also an accredited mediator of the
Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution. She is currently an Honorary Adviser of the
FRC.

BEHLZLT (R2012F12 A1 HHRBESIRAE(T : (£HE2014511 A308 @)
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Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith (appointment effective 1 December 2012; term expires
on 30 November 2015)

Mr Sallnow-Smith is the chairman of the board of The Link Management Limited. He
has over 40 years of experience in the finance and treasury field in the United Kingdom
and Asia, and has extensive knowledge of the property investment/management
industry in Hong Kong. He was chief executive of Hongkong Land Limited between
2000 and 2007. He is an independent non-executive director of Wynn Macau, Limited,
Unitech Corporate Parks PLC and Aviva Life Insurance Company Limited (Hong Kong).

He has been actively involved in public service and is chairman of the Hong Kong
Youth Arts Foundation, a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets Association,
and chairman of the Manpower Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce.

&JkBAsEE (LHiR20126F12 A1 B 22015911 A30H [Eim)
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Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP (appointment effective 1 December 2012; term expires
on 30 November 2015)

Mr Sin is a Legislative Councillor representing the geographical constituency of Hong
Kong Island. He served as a board director of the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority and the chairman of its Remuneration Committee from 2008 to 2014. Mr Sin
served as a board member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board from 2008 to 2014, a
member of the Council for Sustainable Development from 2009 to 2013, a member of
the Greater Pearl River Delta Business Council from 2009 to 2013 and a member of the

Operations Review Committee and Witness Protection Review Board Panel of the ICAC
from 2006 to 2012. He served as a member of the Housing Authority from 2001 to
2009 and a board director of the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited from 1999
to 2009.

BfEES  BEFAEE - KAF#HL (FHHE2012F12 A1 B ZE2015%11 A30H &)
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Mr David Stannard (appointment effective 1 December 2012; term expires on 30
November 2015)

Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in Hong Kong. He was an executive director in
charge of the Corporate Finance Division of the SFC from January 1999 to September
2001, a member of the Listing Committees of the Main Board and the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK) from 2003 to
2008 and a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform from 2003
to 2010.

WERE L (EHIH2012F12 81 B #EZE2015511 A30H Eim)
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Mr John E Strickland, GBS, JP (nominated by HKEx on 1 December 2012; term
expired on 30 November 2014)

Mr Strickland is currently chairman of Octopus Holdings Limited and a director of
Esquel Holdings Inc. He has and continues to be a director or council member or
trustee of a range of not-for-profit organizations. He has served as chairman or member
of many audit committees of private and listed companies. He served as chairman
of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited and the Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation,

as a director of HKEx, the Mass Transit Railway Corporation and the Airport Authority
Hong Kong. He was a member of the Council of the University of Hong Kong, the
ICAC’s Operations Review Committee and the Antiquities Advisory Board. He is
currently an Honorary Adviser of the FRC.

HER SEFMEE ATHET (R2012F1281BRBRIREL Z I EH 220145
11 308 fEim)
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Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (appointment effective 1 December 2014 on nomination
of the SFC; terms expires on 30 November 2016)

Mr Wong is a non-executive director of the SFC and a member of the Listing
Committee (1999-20083) of the Growth Enterprise Market of the SEHK. He was an audit
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong before his retirement in June 2005. He
has served/is serving as an independent non-executive director of several companies
listed in Hong Kong. Mr Wong has also served on advisory committees and statutory
bodies established by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(HKSAR), boards of charities and councils of universities.

ERER - HEAEE  AFHL (R2014F12B1HBEBESIRBET - EHE20169F11 830
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Ms Eirene Yeung (appointment effective 3 June 2014; term expires on 30 November 2016)

Ms Yeung is member of Executive Committee and company secretary of Cheung Kong
(Holdings) Limited. She is also a non-executive director of ARA Asset Management
(Fortune) Limited, which manages Fortune Real Estate Investment Trust, a real estate
investment trust listed in Hong Kong and Singapore; the alternate director to the group
managing director of Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited; and the company
secretary of Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited and CK Life Sciences Int’l.,
(Holdings) Inc. Ms Yeung is a member of the SFC (HKEC Listing) Committee of the
SFC of Hong Kong, a member of the Listing Committee of the Main Board and Growth
Enterprise Market of the SEHK, a General Committee member of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies, a member of the Advisory Board of the MBA Programmes of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong (CUHK) and a member of the Advisory Group on
BBA-JD Programme of CUHK. Ms Yeung is a solicitor of the High Court of the HKSAR
and of the Supreme Court of Judicature in England and Wales. She is also a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors (HKloD), The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS) and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators.

BREu+ ((EHH201456 A3B £ E2016411 308 @)
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Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio) (appointment effective 1 October 2007)

Ms Chung, the Registrar of Companies, is a certified public accountant and a barrister-
at-law. As a representative of the Financial Secretary, Ms Chung is an ex-officio council
member of the HKICPA. She is also a fellow of the HKICS and the HKIoD. Before her
appointment as the Registrar in August 2007, she was a Deputy Law Officer of the
Department of Justice.
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Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) (appointment effective 1 April 2013; term expires on
31 March 2016)

Mr Dickens is the Chief Executive Officer of the FRC. He is a lawyer by training and has
over 25 years of experience as a financial regulator in Hong Kong and Australia. He
was the Head of Listing Division of HKEx from March 2009 until his retirement in March
2013, during which he oversaw significant policy developments. Prior to joining HKEX,
he held several senior positions in the SFC for 14 years, including serving as executive
director of enforcement from 1997 to 1999. He was also a Member of the FRC from

December 2006 to January 2009 on the nomination of the SFC. He is a member of the
Financial Services Development Council.

WEHBARFEHE (EARKE) ((EHH20135FE4 81 B E2016F3831 BER)
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FRC Members (as at 1 December 2014)
BEHRBENE (R20145F12H18)

Chairman

FFE

1 Dr John Poon, JP
EAEAEL - KFEL

Members

&

2 Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP
fRFIK - SHEFIEE - KFat

3 Mr Chew Fook Aun
BRIk E

4 Mr Wilson Fung
S e

5 Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith
#RIKERE

6 Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP
BiE®EE  REFIEE - KFHL

7 Mr David Stannard
ERE R

8 Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP
=R AEFIEE  KFET

9 Ms Eirene Yeung
BiRE T

10 Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio)
BRI KLt (BAARKE)

11 Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio)
WEBRFat (EAKE)
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Financial regulators play an important role in preserving market integrity
and ensuring fair play in capital markets. This is the primary role of the
FRC, as it works to strengthen investor protection and maintain Hong
Kong’s status as a major international financial centre.

As a body independent of the accounting profession, the FRC’s mission
is to uphold the quality of financial reporting of listed entities in Hong
Kong by exercising its statutory powers under the Financial Reporting
Council Ordinance (Cap 588) (FRCO). The FRC is committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance, and operates within a comprehensive
framework of values and guidelines that include a clearly defined governing
structure, high standards of conduct, reliable internal control procedures
and appropriate checks and balances.

To ensure that the FRC remains at the forefront of corporate governance
leadership, it has adopted the best practices issued by the International
Federation of Accountants, which have been drafted specifically to meet
governance requirements within the public sector.

Organization Structure
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Independence

The Council

The FRC’s credibility rests on its independence from the accounting
profession, and this is reinforced by the fact that the FRC is governed by
its Members who operate as a Council. The majority of Council Members,
including the Chairman, are lay people, i.e., non-accountants. The FRC’s
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) is appointed by the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) on the recommendation
of the Council.

As at 31 December 2014, there were 11 Members on the Council. Nine of
these 11 members are appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR,
with three each being nominated by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (HKEx), the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) and the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) respectively.
The Registrar of Companies or her representative, and the FRC’s CEQ, are
ex-officio members.

The CEO and his staff manage the operations of the FRC; they report back
to Council Members in accordance with the provisions of the procedural
manual. On their part, Council Members give directives to the CEO and
FRC staff, and ensure the organization’s statutory functions are being
performed effectively.

Members of the Council are legally bound to declare any interest they
may have in a case. Council Members present during deliberations or
decision-making by HKEx, the HKICPA or the SFC relating to cases to
be referred to the FRC are considered as having an interest in that case.
Council Members having such an interest may not (a) be present during
any deliberation by the Council, (b) take part in any decision of the Council,
or (c) be given any documents related to the case, in accordance with the
FRCO.
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Council Meetings

The Council meets once every two months and holds additional meetings
as and when necessary; it also resolves some matters by circulation. The
financial statements of the Council and progress reports on cases are
also submitted to the Council for review at meetings. In 2014, the Council
held six meetings, all of which were conducted in accordance with the
provisions of the FRCO.

Council Members’ attendance at meetings in 2014 was as follows:

HHEERFLESH
PHERDKESMEART —REHE  LERFZ2HME
g MEUEEEM S FETHR - RENUHHRERR
BEREEHREANEG LIRE - UWEKBEERHE - ARKER
20145 BT T RREH - MAA SR RRB(IBERR
1B BORSHETT -

FBERBKER2014FNEHLERMT -

Meetings attended/held

BRLE/BTRE
Dr John Poon, JP (Chairman) SBAEBAE L - KFEE (E5F) 6/6
Mr Roger Best, JP! MR AT At 2/6
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP? BRFI - EFEE - K Fapte N/A &R
Mr Chew Fook Aun IEkickete 6/6
Mr Wilson Fung? VS b N/A A
Ms Connie Lau, JP? SR A T4+ 2/2
Ms Teresa Ma' HRALL 6/6
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith BRILBAEE 6/6
Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BE®E  REMAES  A¥et 3/6
Mr David Stannard HERE R 4/6
Mr John E Strickland, GBS, JP! Wi SRFER - KFML 6/6
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP? EHR - KFAEE ATt N/A T A
Ms Eirene Yeung? 15 ikE 2+ 3/3
Ms Ada Chung, JP or her representative (ex-officio) 4EREIS AT 4+ siHMA R (ERKE) 6/6
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio) WEBR Tt (FTHRER) (BAKE) 6/6

T Term expired on 30 November 2014.

2 Appointed with effect from 1 December 2014.
3 Resigned with effect from 14 March 2014.

4 Appointed with effect from 3 June 2014.

The average attendance rate at meetings was 88%.

On 31 January 2014, Mr Edward Kwan, MH, Mr Michael Scales and Mr MT
Shum, SBS were appointed to serve as temporary members of the Council
on a rotating basis with respect to cases whereby the Council is not able
to meet the statutory quorum in relation to matters in which members had
disclosed their interests. Mr Edward Kwan, MH, Mr Michael Scales and Mr
MT Shum, SBS were involved in five, three and two cases, respectively, at
the Council meetings held in 2014.
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Council Committees
The Council has five committees, the responsibilities of which are described

below. These committees meet as necessary, on a periodic basis. Each

committee operates according to its own terms of reference.

Corporate Communications Committee (CCC)

NBRERRBETEES
HBERBTRERZE®R  ArHURNERE
%o 5ZBE

RrE1TE

ERIEE ARG EEE -

HEENEES

Members of the CCC as at 15 January 2015.
201551 15 HMEBEREZEgKE -

Back row (from left): Ms Eirene Yeung, Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP, Ms Ada Chung, JP and Mr Michael Scales

&Y (i) : BgZht - BffEHEE

CIREFIEE - KL EERATALREREEE

Front row (from left): Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) and Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (Chairman)

AIE (i)

Terms of reference

38

To formulate corporate communications policies and strategies to
increase publicity about the work of the FRC.

To oversee the implementation of corporate communications
strategies approved by the Council, and to utilize appropriate
communications tools, such as press statements, publications,
electronic communications, and conferences, to reach the media and
external parties.

To recommend an annual promotion plan and budget to the Council.
To oversee the review and updating of FRC website layouts and
contents, printed brochures, promotional materials, and other
publications of the FRC.

To oversee publicity campaigns launched from time to time by the
FRC.
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Summary of the work of the CCC in 2014

e Advised on and approved the 2014 and 2015 Corporate
Communications Plan.

e Reviewed the draft 2013 FRC Annual Report for Council’s approval.

e Advised on and approved the selection of vendors for the 2014 FRC
Annual Report.

e Reviewed a range of the FRC’s promotional materials issued in 2014,
including online advertisements and the FRC eNews.

e Advised on and approved the plan for revamping the FRC website.

e Advised on and approved the FRC’s social media plan.

e Advised on public relations and media strategies for communicating
the FRC’s response to and its recommendations regarding the
Government’s consultation paper on proposals to improve the
regulatory regime for listed entity auditors (the Consultation Paper).

Members of the CCC and their meeting attendance

BB E Z S ER2014F 1) TIERER

o i MALE2014F K201 5F MM EATE -

o BH2013FHBERPDFROER  UHARKES
#t o

o B2014FHEERBFHRMELNR A REHEELE
-

o EHAR2014FHITHNEBFER  EERERBES R
HM"E?E%?@?%E‘H

o BERIAERBHMEMEEE -
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B BREAKBERREERBEIENER

BBENZESENKEREZELESF

Meetings attended/held in 2014

2014F BB HE/RITRE
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP' (Chairman) BRFE - IREFEE - KP4t (£/F) N/A i@
Ms Connie Lau, JP? (Chairman) BIFEE R e t2 (/) 1/1
Ms Teresa Ma® (Chairman) BBt (EF) 1/1
Ms Ada Chung, JP ERRATHLT 3/3
Mr Michael Scales’ i NP N/A i A
Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BHEZEE REFAEE  KATFeL 3/3
Ms Eirene Yeung? tHik e 2t 1/2
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEQ)® or his representative 1k 2B A T4+ (1TH4EE) ssiHR &
(ex-officio) (BAKE) 3/3
Average attendance rate FEHYHE R 92%

T Appointed with effect from 15 January 2015.

2 Resigned with effect from 14 March 2014.

S Appointed with effect from 11 September 2014 and served until 30
November 2014.

4 Appointed with effect from 3 June 2014.

5 Acted as Acting Chairman after Ms Teresa Ma’s term expired on 30
November 2014.
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Finance Committee (FC)

Members of the FC as at 15 January 2015.
201651 B15HMBIBEE K E -

Back row (from left): Ms Teresa Ma, Mr Wilson Fung and Ms Ada Chung, JP

BEE (L) FRAKLT  BEBLEEREBRATHL

Front row (from left): Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) and Mr Chew Fook Aun (Chairman)

AigE (£) : WBBAFHL (ERKE) RERLELE (XF)

Terms of reference

e To review the FRC’s treasury, internal control, and financial and risk
management policies and strategies.

e To approve tenders for procurement with an estimated value
exceeding HK$250,000 (other than legal services relating to the
vetting of investigation or enquiry reports).

e To advise the Council on the short, medium and long term financial
implications of the FRC’s strategic plans.

e To review and make recommendations to the Council on the FRC’s
annual budget.

e To review the FRC’s draft annual financial statements before
submission to the Council.

e To provide advice on the future funding model of the FRC once the
independent audit oversight reform proposal is finalized.

Summary of the work of the FC in 2014

* Reviewed the draft financial statements for the 2013 financial year.

e Considered the revised procurement manual.

e Considered the budget for 2015.

* Approved the appointment of an independent consultant to conduct a
benchmarking study on staff compensation and benefits.

40 Financial Reporting Council
2014 Annual Report

BiEsE

o BHARMER - PIESEEHI LA K B 7 B o b 2 TR R

KRB o

o HUEMFISHEBEEETHREBERE (FREHAS

HEMBERERERERIN) -

s RARRBUENEH  THMERBVBLE - [

ARKEREER -

o EHARNEERE  URABKERHEER

o BERARFEMBEHREHA

==

s RBVYRIEENEEZZRTR

BRESBEANER -

BB ESER2014FH TIEHE
o EH2013FMBFEM I HHREK
o FHRIIEFTHOREFM -
o EH2015FMIEESE ©

s EZEBIUBEMNETAHAET

AR ABRBEE -

EEE - REEARBA

i B H14% N 0 22 R



Members of the FC and their meeting attendance HBZESENKEREZLEE

Meetings attended/held in 2014
2014 F W EE HRE/ETIRE

Mr Chew Fook Aun (Chairman) BERLiE (£FE) 2/2
Ms Ada Chung, JP ERRATHMLT 2/2
Mr Wilson Fung' BB N/A &
Ms Teresa Ma? e 1/2
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio) WEBARTamt FTEEE) (EAKE) 2/2
Average attendance rate FEHEFEE 88%
' Appointed with effect from 15 January 2015. T R2015F1 A15BEERE -

2 Term expired on 30 November 2014 and reappointed on 15 January 2015. 2 {EE72014411 A30H f@/im * B2015541 150 B

ZiE o
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e

Members of the IAORC as at 15 January 2015.
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Back row (from left): Mr Wilson Fung, Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP and Mr David Stannard
feHE (ZoiR) - IBRELAE - KL E - BiEEE  REFEE - AT REEREE

Front row (from left): Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio), Dr John Poon, JP (Chairman) and Mr Chew Fook Aun
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Terms of reference

e To provide advice to the FRC and the Secretariat on matters related
to the reform of auditor oversight systems in Hong Kong (the Reform),
including but not limited to the registration, inspection, investigation
and sanction of auditors.

e To oversee the work of FRC staff in relation to the Reform, including
but not limited to the assumption of statutory powers for the
inspection of listed company auditors and the transition arrangements
relating to audit inspection and related legislative amendments; and
to ensure that the activities undertaken by the staff are in accordance
with the directives of the FRC and the agreed timeline.

e To receive and consider regular progress reports from the staff on the
progress of the Reform.

e To undertake specific tasks related to the Reform as required by the
FRC.

Summary of the work of the IAORC in 2014

e Discussed and advised on the FRC’s response to the Consultation
Paper, and the recommendations submitted by the FRC.

e Discussed issues relating to the auditor regulatory reform of Hong
Kong.

Members of the IAORC and their meeting attendance
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Meetings attended/held in 2014

2014 R/ RBTRE

Dr John Poon, JP (Chairman) EEBREL - KT (FF) 2/2
Mr Roger Best, JP! BT A Tt 2/2
Mr Chew Fook Aun BT EE 2/2
Mr Wilson Fung? BB S 2 N/A 5
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith FROIKBRLE 2/2
Hon Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP BMEEE REFAEE  ATFET 2/2
Mr David Stannard SR A 2/2
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) (ex-officio) WERBAR Tt (FTHAE) (BRKE) 2/2
Average attendance rate EHYHE R 100%

" Term expired on 30 November 2014.
2 Appointed with effect from 15 January 2015.
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Operations Oversight Committee (OOC)

Members of the OOC as at 15 January 2015.
M20155F1 A15AMEFEREZE®KE -

Back row (from left): Mr Jamie Allen, Mr Chew Fook Aun, Mr Vincent Duhamel, Mr Stephen Taylor and Mr Paul Winkelmann
BHE (#R) « WHEPEE - ARE LA - HIESEE © Stephen Taylort & & Paul WinkelmannZt 4
Front row (from left): Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio), Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (Chairman)

and Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP
AigE (ZE#8) « BRJKARSEA - WEBAFaL (BAKE)

Terms of reference

To formulate policies, strategies, guidelines and procedures for the
operation of the FRC.

To provide advice to the FRC and its operational staff on technical
and business issues.

To consider the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints and
reviews currently being dealt with by staff.

To consider enquiry reports approved by the Financial Reporting
Review Committee before their submission to the FRC.

To consider investigation reports approved by the Audit Investigation
Board before submission to the FRC.

To consider the recommendations in the complaint/review assessment
reports before submission to the FRC, and to endorse those
complaint/review assessment reports requiring no follow-up action.

To consider follow-up actions in relation to the review of modified
auditors’ reports.

To consider and approve the recommendations made in the risk-
based review handling reports in relation to financial statements
selected for review under the risk-based financial statements review
programme.
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Summary of the work of the OOC in 2014

Considered the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints, and
reviews, and also the progress of the risk-based financial statements
review programme and the review of modified auditors’ reports.
Considered 44 complaint handling and assessment reports and 29
review assessment reports.

Considered and approved 65 recommendations arising from the
review of modified auditors’ reports.

Considered and approved 34 recommendations in the risk-based
review handling reports.

Considered four investigation reports and one enquiry report.

Members of the OOC and their meeting attendance
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Meetings attended/held in 2014

2014 F S HE/BITRE
Mr Roger Best, JP' (Chairman) BmBATeLT (£F) 6/7
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP? (Chairman) ERR MEHEE  KF#@t2(£R) N/A TE A
Mr Jamie Allen WA 5/7
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP2 BRFI - SEFEE - KFARL2 N/A i A
Mr Chew Fook Aun Bkt 4/6
Mr Vincent Duhamel MIEN S E 5/7
Ms Teresa Ma' e et 6/6
Mr John E Strickland, GBS, JP! M TRFEE - KFEL 5/6
Mr Stephen Taylor Stephen Taylort & 7
Mr Paul Winkelmann Paul Winkelmann?t 4 5/6
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) or his representative k) B A T4+ (FTIER) siH KR
(ex-officio) (ERKE) 6/6
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith? BR KBRS A8 1/1
Average attendance rate A R R 86%

44

Term expired on 30 November 2014.

Appointed with effect from 15 January 2015.

Acted as Temporary Member in 2014, appointed as member with effect
from 15 January 2015.
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Remuneration Committee (RC)

Members of the RC as at 15 January 2015.
R20155F1 F15AMFMEEEKE -

Back row (from left): Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith, Ms Eirene Yeung and Mr Roger Best

B (Li#2) : SRR E  BRZLERBEMBELE

Front row (from left): Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio) and Dr John Poon, JP (Chairman)

AIE (i)

Terms of reference

e To make recommendations to the Council on staffing, remuneration

and employment policies and strategies, including salary structure,
terms and conditions of employment, and staff fringe benefits.

To make recommendations to the Council on the annual pay
adjustment and the amount of variable compensation payable to
individual staff members.

To make recommendations to the Council on the amount of variable
compensation payable to the CEO.

To review the remuneration policy to ensure that it is consistent with

all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Summary of the work of the RC in 2014
e Considered the year-end performance-based variable pay of 2013

and the salary revision of 2014.

Introduced various remuneration policies, including the No Pay Leave
Policy, the Variable Pay Policy, and the Incentive Scheme Policy.
Considered and made recommendations concerning the engagement
of an independent consultant to conduct a benchmarking study on
staff compensation and benefits.
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Members of the RC and their meeting attendance

FHESENHEREZFLEE

Meetings attended/held in 2014

2014 F M BHE/BITRE
Dr John Poon, JP (Chairman) BEBREL - KEET (FF) 5/6
Mr Roger Best' BB ST A N/A 5 A
Ms Connie Lau, JP? LI AR T 42 1/1
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith FOKERLAE 5/5
Ms Eirene Yeung?® RS Lt 1/2
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (CEO) or his representative k&) B K Pt (FTERAEH) HEREK
(ex-officio) (BRKE) 5/5
Average attendance rate T 90%

" Appointed with effect from 15 January 2015.
2 Resigned with effect from 14 March 2014.
8 Appointed with effect from 3 June 2014.

Operations

Enquiry — Financial Reporting Review Panel and Committee
In cases where the FRC believes there may be non-compliance in relation
to a listed entity, the Council may appoint a Financial Reporting Review
Committee (FRRC) to conduct an enquiry. The committee consists of a
Panel Convenor as Chairman, and at least four other members of the
Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP).

Under the powers vested in it under section 43 of the FRCO, the FRRC
may require relevant persons to produce records and documents and
provide information and explanations so it can conduct an enquiry.

Members of the FRRP are appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
in consultation with the Council. As at 31 December 2014, the FRRP had
43 members, including six Convenors. They are appointed based on their
experience in accounting, auditing, finance, banking, law, administration,
or management. A list of FRRP members can be found in the section
“Membership of Board and Panels”.

A FRRC formed in 2012 completed one enquiry case in 2014, and a new
FRRC was formed to deal with an enquiry initiated in 2014.
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Investigations — Audit Investigations Board (AIB)

The Council may direct the AIB to conduct investigations into possible
auditing or reporting irregularities in relation to listed entities. Under the
powers vested in it under sections 25, 26, 27 and 28 of the FRCO, the AIB
may require relevant persons to produce records and documents, supply
information and provide explanations for the purposes of the investigation.

The CEO is the ex-officio Chairman of the AIB. Other members of the AIB,
who are normally staff members of the FRC, are appointed by the Council.
A list of the AIB members can be found in the section “Membership of
Board and Panels”.

In 2014, the AIB completed four investigation cases and has been dealing
with 10 investigation cases brought forward from the previous year and 22
cases initiated during the year.

Checks and Balances

Accountability and Audit

The FRC has adopted a strict audit process. The FRC’s annual budget
must be endorsed by the Council. The Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury then reviews and approves the FRC’s annual estimates of

income and expenditure.

The financial statements of the FRC are subject to an official audit by
the Government’s Director of Audit; annual reports are submitted to
the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury and tabled at the
Legislative Council. The Chairman, the CEO and the Deputy CEO of the
FRC attend the meeting of the Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs

and present a progress report each year.

Process Review Panel (PRP)

The FRC has its work scrutinized by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure
that individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions
and decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines.
The PRP issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review,
together with suggestions for improvements. All members of the PRP are
appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.
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Ombudsman
The Ombudsman also indirectly oversees the work of the FRC by handling
public complaints against the FRC and its staff relating to allegations of

maladministration.

Internal Controls

The FRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organizational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties. The FRC assigns a director to take charge of each
case from the moment enquiries commence; at least one other person at
director level or above must review the case before any decision or action
is taken.

The FRC regularly monitors all its policies and guidelines relating to
personnel administration, procurement, authorization of transactions, and
the safeguarding of its assets.

Code of Conduct

FRC staff members are required to adhere to our code of conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the FRC. Our code of conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection.
This includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of
their own and their spouse’s investments, and to notify any changes in
their holdings.

The FRC’s code of conduct is reviewed and updated on a regular basis to
ensure that it remains consistent with the best practices currently being
applied across the areas in which the FRC operates.

Communications with Stakeholders

The FRC actively communicates with stakeholders, including its funding
parties, the accounting and auditing industry, its regulatory counterparts,
and the general investing public.

Annual reports and bi-annual eNews publications are issued to keep
stakeholders informed about the FRC’s operations and any new
developments arising. Operations statistics and press releases about
completed cases are regularly posted on the FRC website (www.frc.org.hk).
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The FRC actively participates in industry-related initiatives. In 2014, the
FRC submitted its response to the Consultation Paper together with its
recommendations, which are available on the FRC website.

To improve the transparency of our work, the FRC is in the process of
revamping its official website to make it more informative and user friendly.
The FRC has also revised its Access to Information Policy, which is
available on the website. Starting from 2015, the position on our handling
information requests is reported to the Council at Council meetings, and
such statistics are published on our website.
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Report of the
Director of Audit

ETEERERE

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report
To the Financial Reporting Council

| have audited the financial statements of the Financial Reporting Council
set out on pages 52 to 67, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Financial Reporting Council’s Responsibility for
the Financial Statements

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
section 18(2) of the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588) and
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as the Financial Reporting Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1)
of the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission
auditing standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Financial
Reporting Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Financial Reporting Council as at 31 December 2014,
and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with section 18(2) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance.

LAU Sun-wo
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

12 March 2015

B SR RFUNERBREBRRAB SRR WEER
EFRE o PREEMRRFBUANE AN AIE - 215574
A REE SRR M G MR T A EANHREURA RO RS -
ERMEZERRE - BAMEEANBERBREEEMT
BRHBIMEREMOAEIES - URABENETEF B
WHREHBERDOAMENAORERRER - FitTE
EEEMBERBMEAN SRR BEMERAELNS
FHERTE RN - URFHEM RN ERT R -

HARE  RMEGHEFEERSARMEE M ARNETE
R o

=z
=
BHRR ZEUBHRRCRRBRBBRVBRELENEET TS

3, I B B S FE 3R B 2014 F12 AT H N EHBi RE = 3%
HILEENEENRSRE YD RB(HBERBIED)
F18(2)I6H R -

EiEER
EEPRER
B RARAT

EitE

BSET
HETITETHR
ANEEBKIE261E

20153 A12H

MEERE
20144 %]

51



Financial
Statements

BT IEER R

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #HR&UR A%
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014F12A31HLEFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (RFABTTIR)

Note
ks 2014 2013
Income A
Annual contribution HFEEAES 19,448,100 18,522,000
Interest income SN 531,782 463,330
Recovery of costs of investigation FHE R AR YL - 400,695
19,979,882 19,386,025
Expenditure S H
Staff costs =N %N 6 (19,698,946) (15,713,286)
Corporate communications expenses i 7 (754,075) (1,010,608)
Audit oversight research and EITEENRE
related expenses MRS (121,726) (2,366,691)
Legal and professional fees FRRBEEER (81,325) (643,348)
Depreciation charge TEXH 10 (137,013) (128,214)
Impairment loss on accounts JEU AR X
receivable DERIERIEES 11 (100,766) -
Other operating expenses Hith & M 8 (674,711) (757,008)
(21,568,562) (20,619,155)
Deficit and total
comprehensive income R A
for the year RBEEWA (1,588,680) (1,233,130)

The notes on pages 56 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BF TG AR R 2R

As at 31 December 2014 M2014%12A31H
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (2FABTINIR)
Note
k3 2014 2013

Non-current assets EREEE
Office equipment and furniture WAERBRRA 10 469,728 597,461
Current assets RBEE
Receivables and prepayments TEUR BE Zx N TB A~ 3018 11 647,951 765,443
Time deposits with original FERHABB=MAN

maturities over three months EHIFR 12 22,000,000 25,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERIRESEEY 13 11,991,340 9,491,614
Total current assets REBEEAE 34,639,291 35,257,057
Current liabilities pEI=R
Accounts payable and accruals RSN EER (2,442,064) (1,598,883)
Net current assets REEEZRE 32,197,227 33,658,174
Net assets BEEFE 32,666,955 34,255,635
Funds =
General fund —REE 14 12,666,955 14,255,635
Reserve fund EEE 14 20,000,000 20,000,000
Total funds wES 32,666,955 34,255,635

Approved and authorized for issue by the Financial Reporting Council on  7A2015% 3 A 12 B 81 K5 1E /B Bt f R 1) 3%
12 March 2015

Dr John Poon, JP BHBEEL  AF#L Mark Dickens, JP WEBAXF#H+
Chairman Z/& Chief Executive Officer 7TBA8#E
The notes on pages 56 to 67 form part of these financial statements. F56H E67 BRI T AR B RERH—IBD -



Financial Statements continueq

BIIEHMR w

> 4=4
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS BELEEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014F12A31HIEFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (2FLABTITINIR)
General fund Reserve fund Total funds
—RES RES wmae
At 1 January 2013 #2013F1A1H 15,488,765 20,000,000 35,488,765
Deficit and total comprehensive 2013F st B ir A
income for 2013 WA (1,233,130) - (1,233,130)
At 31 December 2013 2013912 831H 14,255,635 20,000,000 34,255,635
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1H1H 14,255,635 20,000,000 34,255,635
Deficit and total comprehensive 2014F B4t M B AR &
income for 2014 ON (1,588,680) - (1,588,680)
At 31 December 2014 A2014F12831H 12,666,955 20,000,000 32,666,955
The notes on pages 56 to 67 form part of these financial statements. F56E Z67HEMMIFARMEHREN—I S -
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WERER
HZE2014F12 A31HILFE
(EABITIIR)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note
(i Fss 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating RETFERELMN
activities RERE
Deficit for the year ERELM (1,588,680) (1,233,130)
Adjustments for: JFEIEE
Depreciation charge wEZH 137,013 128,214
Impairment loss on accounts JE U AR R
receivable VERERSES 100,766 -
Interest income LB A (531,782) (463,330)
(1,882,683) (1,568,246)
Changes in working capital: EEEREE
Decrease/(increase) in receivables FE U BE 2 % TE < 2018
and prepayments A (3gGan) 49,298 (322,826)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts ER R ERTE A
payable and accruals #hn, Crd) 850,658 (715,854)
Net cash outflow from RETHELENRS
operating activities FHBE (982,727) (2,606,926)
Cash flows from investing RETBEEN
activities HeRg
Payment for the purchase of office BERATRER
equipment and furniture REAFA (16,757) (285,369)
Interest received BB 499,210 440,939
Decrease in time deposits with REBIEREB=(EAH
original maturities over three months TEHFERR D 3,000,000 2,000,000
Net cash inflow from RETBHELENRS
investing activities RAFE 3,482,453 2,155,570
Net increase/(decrease) in ReERESEEY
cash and cash equivalents #im, Ohd) FHE 2,499,726 (451,356)
Cash and cash equivalents MAB1AZRER
at 1 January BHLZEY 9,491,614 9,942,970
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31AZEER
at 31 December HEZEY 13 11,991,340 9,491,614

The notes on pages 56 to 67 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(a)

(b)

56

General Information

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was established in Hong Kong
under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588) (FRCO).
Its office address is 29th Floor, High Block, Queensway Government
Offices, 66 Queensway, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
As set out in the FRCO,
investigations concerning auditing and reporting irregularities in

the FRC is empowered to conduct

relation to entities listed in Hong Kong, and to make enquiries into
non-compliance with accounting requirements on the part of such
entities.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the functional currency of the FRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Financial Reporting Council
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(c)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revision to an accounting estimate is recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by the FRC in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 16.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the FRC
is set out below.

Office equipment and furniture

Office equipment and furniture are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except that items costing less
than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item of
office equipment and furniture comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of office equipment and furniture over its estimated
useful life after considering its estimated residual value. The
respective useful lives are as follows:

Computers 3 years
Other office equipment 7 years
Office furniture and fixtures 10 years

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting
period.

An item of office equipment and furniture is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in surplus or
deficit in the period in which the asset is derecognized.

3.

SITHE
BB (7))

MBERBDE TE TS BAETNERRE - WRE
FHART BRI REEEHETNERE - Ee

NHER - MREFTHERMARAMEGELE -
ﬂgﬁ DTE’JHHFEﬁ%H;KXHHFEﬁﬁEDL °©

A7

1 765 0 0 2 7 P D B R B S s o A BV T 4% L R B
ﬁ*#&i‘%ﬁikggﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁﬁ C AR B IR E W EE
FEREE - R IRE6 o

MBERBDRBNEZSABREMEHRTIAT -

MAERBEREA

D 2 AR A T R AR AR B 5T 9T B RO {8 4B R 5
AR - MEARAVERS,0007T MR B BIREE RS 8K « B2
ERERFAREOKA  RFABEERREEE
B IR T B 3 (E FR B T M U T (T
B R 5 0 5 e ) B 4 T BB AR

FEDRENPAEREREEEE 2B AERT
I E BAFTRER  NWEARBEENKAE - FI1BR
BRI AT

E 3%
HA N =& T
MRERARE 104F

BE- UEASHRNESNEEINEG
EITRE - RIFREERE -

18 $R & B HIR

#)J#’AE&%&@EIEEﬁ“?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘i@ﬁ}ﬂ%ﬁ?

BEEEARREEN G R ITER - RIEHEAZEE
Eiﬁ’ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁ»i}z{a% (R ERBEERSRRF
B (A MEEZREANEZERET)  RREERILL
R R A BERSEAL -

MEERE
20144 %]

57



Financial Statements continueq

BIIEHMR w

58

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Office equipment and furniture (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the FRC assesses whether there
is any indication that an item of office equipment and furniture may be
impaired or a previously recognized impairment loss no longer exists
or may have decreased. When there is an indication of impairment,
the recoverable amount of an item of office equipment and furniture
is estimated, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in surplus or
deficit, if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its recoverable
amount. When a previously recognized impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior periods. Reversals of impairment losses are
recognized in surplus or deficit.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statement
of financial position when the FRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or issue of financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets of the FRC principally include accounts receivable,
interest receivable, time deposits and other bank balances. They
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows. The contractual terms of
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance
for impairment loss. An impairment loss is recognized when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Any impairment loss is
recognized in surplus or deficit and reflected in an allowance account.
When the FRC considers that there are no realistic prospects of
recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off.
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(e)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in
surplus or deficit, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its amortized cost that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized.

A financial asset is derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the asset have expired or the FRC has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include accounts payable and are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method subsequent to
initial recognition.

A financial liability is derecognized when the relevant obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with maturity
within three months when placed or acquired, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable.

Unconditional and non-refundable contributions are recognized as
income when they become receivable.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Recovery of costs of investigation is recognized when the right to
receive is established.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Salaries and paid annual leave are accrued in the period in which the
employees rendered the associated services.

Bonus payments are recognized when the FRC has a present legal
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme are
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the FRC in an
independently administered fund. The employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme,
except for the employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded
to the FRC when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
scheme.

Annual Contribution

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (CRTF), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Securities
and Futures Commission (SFC) and the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEx) signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) regarding the funding arrangement of the FRC. Each party
agreed to contribute an annual amount of $4.9 million to the
FRC in 2014 (2013: $4.6 million) for the recurring expenses. To
cater for inflation adjustments and to provide greater certainty to
the FRC to facilitate its development and future work plan, the
annual contribution from each party for 2015 shall be increased to
approximately $7.0 million.

The office premises of the FRC are provided by the CRTF at a
nominal rent of $1 per annum. All the related utility and sewage
charges, outgoings, costs and expenses incurred in repairing,
maintaining and managing the office premises are borne by the
CRTF.

Interest Income
Interest income was earned from time deposits and other bank
balances.
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Staff Costs 6. BT
2014 2013
Salaries, bonuses and gratuities oo A RES 18,326,395 14,268,501
MPF contributions BREIEAESHR 729,015 581,039
Medical and life insurance BERASRR 448,024 373,637
Staff training and development BTN EER 93,516 84,392
Staff recruitment expenses HWHEEILH 4,340 327,474
Others Hih 97,656 78,243
19,698,946 15,713,286
Except for the Chief Executive Officer, Council members are not MRITIRAHRIN  MBEERBKELEME - A L8
remunerated. The above staff costs included the emoluments of the TR E BIE1T B8 & B £3,697,9027T (20134 :
Chief Executive Officer amounting to $3,697,902 (2013: $2,994,757), 2,994,75770) & B 1E B B & 1t 413,654,5457T
which comprised salary and bonus of $3,654,545 (2013: (20134 : 2,952,9147T) * % & (R 226,607 7T (2013
$2,952,914), medical insurance of $26,607 (2013: $25,593) and MPF 4 25,5037T) B34 HIM AT S #216,7507T (2013
contributions of $16,750 (2013: $16,250). F :16,2507T) °
Corporate Communications Expenses 7. HEEAXZH
2014 2013
Promotion and public education WERAXHE 551,649 626,903
Publications AR T4 194,606 294,276
Others Hhh 7,820 89,429
754,075 1,010,608
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8. Other Operating Expenses 8. Hit&EEXH
2014 2013
Conferences and duty visits EHELEKRER 193,955 143,455
Professional liability insurance B2EETRE 25,150 25,150
Office equipment and furniture
expensed WAERERRERAL 20,401 91,515
Others Hith 435,205 496,888
674,711 757,008
In accordance with section 19 of the FRCO, the Audit Commission RIE (O A EE 3R B IR B 1915 - BB RITTHE K
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region NEABEZVBERBDOMBRE - BFFBLER
audits the financial statements of the FRC. The Commission does not LB AR TS UCER B R
charge for this service.
9. Taxation 9. HiE
Pursuant to section 16 of the FRCO, the FRC is exempt from taxation RIE (T EIERBIED) F1615 - BEERBERE
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap 112). A ZARE (RS IED) (F112F) BF -
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10. Office Equipment and Furniture

10. AERBEREEA

Other Office
office furniture
Computers equipment and fixtures Total
Htg N E PAERA
& i BB k#E #azE
Cost R
At 1 January 2013 H2013%F1H1A 470,046 144,891 74,144 689,081
Additions BA 74,476 - 420,000 494,476
Disposals BE (31,850) - - (31,850)
At 31 December 2013 H2013%12831H 512,672 144,891 494,144 1,151,707
At 1 January 2014 7®2014%1H1H 512,672 144,891 494,144 1,151,707
Additions A 9,280 - - 9,280
Disposals RE (1,460) - - (1,460)
At 31 December 2014 2014512831 H 520,492 144,891 494,144 1,159,527
Accumulated depreciation i E
At 1 January 2013 2013F1A1H (850,737) (78,701) (28,444) (457,882)
Charge for the year FAZH (68,601) (20,699) (38,914) (128,214)
Written back on disposals i B R O] 31,850 - - 31,850
At 31 December 2013 2013 12A31H (387,488) (99,400) (67,358) (554,246)
At 1 January 2014 7201461 A1H (387,488) (99,400) (67,358) (554,246)
Charge for the year FAZH (74,366) (13,233) (49,414) (137,013)
Written back on disposals R E R EE 1,460 - - 1,460
At 31 December 2014 7R2014512831H (460,394) (112,633) (116,772) (689,799)
Net book value FREFE
At 31 December 2014 "20145F12H831H 60,098 32,258 377,372 469,728
At 31 December 2013 M2013%F12A31H 125,184 45,491 426,786 597,461
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11. Receivables and Prepayments 1. BRI KR AN RIE
2014 2013
Accounts receivable FEULBR X 156,282 309,115
Less: allowance for impairment loss R BB KB (100,750) -
55,532 309,115
Prepayments TERTRIE
— Medical and life insurance — BEN ASRE 244,881 201,795
— Staff benefits —BIER 27,420 27,766
— Professional liability insurance —BEHERR 13,589 13,589
— Others — Hfp 102,944 42,165
Interest receivable FEUYLFI B 203,585 171,013
647,951 765,443
The accounts receivable mainly represented the recoverable costs of JEWBR R EZEFAE R AT UREBIRK A o F A FE 4R ROUR
investigations. The movement in the allowance for impairment loss in BEAEERZHOT

respect of accounts receivable during the year is as follows:

2014 2013
At 1 January M1A1H - -
Impairment loss recognized ERERBIERL 100,766 -
Uncollectible amount written off LGSR FN Tl k] (16) -
At 31 December ®12A31H 100,750 -
The impairment loss related to two individually impaired accounts BB R R I W 2 B 8 ) S A 78 MR B R B /9 FE UK AR
receivable that were in default of payment. Koo
The remaining balances of accounts receivable after impairment MR EEERREOEURIRRSED @AW RME -

allowance are past due but not impaired.

12. Time Deposits with Original Maturities over 12. REEAAEB=EANWEHRERK
Three Months

Time deposits with original maturities over three months represented REHABBE=EANTEHEHIE-—FTHR 2 EHT
one-year term deposits which carried fixed interest ranging from o OREEFEFERB1.44E 1,528 5 B (2013F -
1.44% to 1.52% (2013: 1.14% to 1.47%) per annum. The balances 114[EE=1.47[E) - A20145F K2013F 12 A31 AR &k
outstanding at 31 December 2014 and 2013 had maturities less than R HREAR 1218 A A R4 -

12 months from the end of the reporting period.
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13.

14.

15.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 13. RERBEEEY
2014 2013
Cash on hand FHEES 3,893 3,363
Current accounts S EEHTER 134,453 216,185
Savings account HETN 352,994 272,066
Time deposits with original maturities RE|EA R EB=1EH &
within three months EHTFER 11,500,000 9,000,000
11,991,340 9,491,614
Funds 14. £
General fund represents the operating surplus of the FRC’s recurrent —MESVEVBERDESMHESHNLLE RS -
funding.
Reserve fund represents the non-recurrent contributions received HECEARAMELEES  BEIHMAE &
from the CRTF, the HKICPA, the SFC and the HKEx at the B B XFRBRAERER LM EERBRATIR
establishment of the FRC according to the MoU. Each party AWFFEEMNESR - EERBRA-FETAHE B
contributed a lump-sum amount of $5 million which is not refundable. TEETHNES - RESTREFUEES TR RHA
The reserve fund is to be deployed to meet any inadequacies of the Z2BERATHA -
recurrent funding and other exigencies of circumstances.
Financial Instruments 15. €T A

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as

EECMIANEASENT -

follows:
2014 2013
Financial assets at REBARATTEN
amortized cost cTRMEE
Accounts receivable FEUS AR R 55,532 309,115
Interest receivable FEUF B 203,585 171,013
Time deposits with original maturities REEIE BB =1E A
over three months TEHTF R 22,000,000 25,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReE kB EEY 11,991,340 9,491,614
34,250,457 34,971,742
Financial liabilities at REBBRASTEN
amortized cost EA =L
Accounts payable and accruals e BR R R EET & 2,442,064 1,598,883

The carrying amounts of the FRC’s financial assets and financial liabilities
approximate to their fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

20144 2013512 A318 » MBERBNEREE
MERmEBENEASBREOIEAAEE-
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16. Financial Risks

(a)

(b)

66

Credit risk
The FRC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable,
time deposits and other bank balances.

The accounts receivable are assessed for recoverability on an
individual basis and impairment allowances are recognized when
considered necessary. The recovery of the investigation costs is
closely monitored by the Council. The FRC does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The Council approved an investment policy which, subject to other
limits, only allows the FRC to place deposits with licensed banks in
Hong Kong having regard to the credit rating. The policy also limits
the amount placed with each bank and the maximum duration the
deposit is placed in order to manage its credit risk.

The portfolio of deposits was managed and monitored to ensure it
met the investment policy with bi-monthly reports submitted to the
Council. As a result, the FRC was not exposed to significant credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk was represented by the
carrying amount of the financial assets as set out in the statement of
financial position.

Liquidity risk

The FRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low
level of liquidity risk. The FRC maintains sufficient levels of cash
and cash equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully
reviewing forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities were due
to be repaid within three months (2013: three months) from the end
of the reporting period.
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16. Financial Risks (continued)

(c)

Market risk

Currency risk

The FRC received its funding and settled its expenses in Hong
Kong dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities were all
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the FRC was not
exposed to any currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The FRC’s interest bearing assets mainly comprised funds placed
in time deposits with fixed interest rate which are measured at
amortized cost in the financial statements. The FRC was subject
to the risk that the fair value of these time deposits would fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. In order to manage
this risk, the FRC adopted a policy to monitor interest rate risk on a
continuous basis.
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Operations
Review

E{EE R

Key Operations Statistics

FEEFHE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Pursuable complaints received
B A IR AR R 9 7 19 20 33
Modified auditors’ reports screened
ERMERREE R R RS 142 131 138 168 171
Financial statements selected for review
B R S HmE - 70 75 75 87
Investigations completed
TR FAENER 1 5 9 5 4
Enquiries completed
TR E AR EZ 1 2 1 2 1
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O perat | ons ReV | €W (continued)

B AEE B w

Complaints

Stock markets on which companies/securities involved

in pursuable complaints are listed
BRABRERFHAR / BHHELTHRED S
33

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

™ GEM Board
BIZEMR

[ Main Board
F1R
[ Listed on GEM and subsequently on

Main Board
FRAERIZER K ER T

Nature of complaints
RFME

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

[ Both auditing and/or reporting irregularities
and non-compliance with accounting
requirements

RS R ET &/ HERTETRRAER
BAREEE

" Non-compliance with accounting requirements
TENRGHHEEER

[ Auditing and/or reporting irregularities
N ﬁlﬁ%ﬁ\é‘ﬁz\%

7 O Financial Reporting Council
2014 Annual Report

R

Source of pursuable complaints
A BRAE IR ER Y SRR

2010 2011 2012

[ Members of the public
RBAT

[ Anonymous
EZAT

[ Regulators

EEHE

[ Both regulators and members of the public
RIS KB EE#ERARAL

1 Complaints received from both regulators and
anonymous source

RIS B EEMERESBAL

Size of accounting firms involved in complaints
BRRFNETTETHRE
33

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

[ Joint accounting firms of different sizes
SR —ERE R 2 SR T
[ Small-size accounting firms
(with five or less partners/directors)
NIEEENTT (BRBIATHERA/EE)
B Medium-size accounting firms
(with six or more partners/directors)
RAEISERITT (BRBRALENERA/EE)
M Big Four accounting firms
PN T



Proactive Review

Screening and Review of Modified Auditors’ Reports

FEFEA
WA R BMFRRE TR ABERE

The FRC screened all 171 (2013:168) modified auditors’ reports issued in &P T A R2014E X IR R D S R EAIHRE £
2014. There were 184 (2013:185) modifications and 207 (2013: 213) issues 17115 (20134 : 16813) - AR D IEEIF Y = B AL B
as some modified auditors’ reports contained more than one modification &E¥NEZR—HIFEFRZEER R/ ZNR— (AR E - Bt 3EmE
and/or more than one issue. No review was performed when a modification (R &= BiE E£184%& (20134 : 18578 ) K B 42 & 007
related only to an emphasis of matter. The FRC reviewed all other modified 8 (20134 : 213%8) o (M E XS RIEH E2E1E - BIAR

auditors’ reports and made inquiries when appropriate.

Number of modified auditors’ reports screened
ERHNFEREERZBMBRE

142
131

2010 2011

Analysis by modification

FERERALBABRENEEIN

2013

I Emphasis of matter 71 Qualified opinion
BHEH REER

Analysis by issue
FEREERZBEAMENEED

2013

W Going concern 1 Insufficient information
FHEREREN BT R

W Business uncertainty
5% F T HRERE R

TeEH - - AREHNTMAEMIEEREEEREMBE
AR ZREL AR -

168 171

2013 2014

2014

M Disclaimer of opinion I Adverse opinion
TERER BEE

2014

I Lack of proper books and records
RAEBEZENRE Mk

Kir e



Operations Review continued

B AEE B w

Review of Financial Statements ERF IR

The FRC selected 87 sets of financial statements for comprehensive review 7K B2013/20142 5B BAE 15 A b M E B A s R B st
in the 2013/2014 review cycle under its risk-based financial statements  ZI#E87 M BHRIEZEERM @ HEEERZ DT ¢
review programme, and the breakdown by selection criteria is as follows:

I Newly-listed entities
MEmER

B Frequent change of directors and senior management
KREEHREZENERTERAR

I Change of auditors
BRI EED

I Listed entities using ASBE

FA (BESFEA) M ETERE
1 Overseas auditors

TEIMZBIAD

71 Small audit firm dealing with complex audit issues
2 /N R AT R IR A R ) B R T R
I Alleged non-compliance with accounting requirements and/or auditing or
reporting irregularities; listed entities subject to intervention by HKEx and
the SFC; or prolonged suspended listed entities (other than shells)
2013/2014' BRETERETRTEER / IBEAKERTETR  WARPANEES
AR ETEEE : SARANFIEN FHEE (ZERAFRIMN)
Financial statements with prior period adjustments suggesting investors

relying on prior period financial statements may have been misled
TEL AR BN M B IRER (REBXXZAATBRERRE)
0 Industry theme — mining
T ERE —IRiEE
Random basis
ey il =3

1 2013/2014 review cycle is from July 2013 to December 2014.
2013/2014FFARH2013F7 AE2014%F 128 -

Traffic of the FRC Website B 755 BEE 3R o 4R ik 21 B )R 2

Number of visits to the website
UL IET R E
(2010-2014)

100,191

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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Summaries of Completed Investigations and
Enquiry

The FRC completed four investigation cases and one enquiry case in 2014.

Case 1
Acquisition of a subsidiary

Background

There was a business combination which resulted in recognition

of significant amount of goodwill and a fair value adjustment on

the intangible assets acquired. The consideration for the business

combination was partly settled by the issuance of convertible bonds.

Issues

1

. All the acquiree’s assets and liabilities acquired in a business

combination may not be properly identified and recognized separately

from goodwill.

2. Deferred tax liabilities may not be properly recognized on the taxable
temporary differences arising from the fair value adjustments on the
intangible assets acquired in a business combination.

3. The fair value of the convertible bonds issued for the business
combination may be inappropriately allocated among the different
components.

4. In the annual goodwill impairment assessment, the goodwill acquired
in the business combination may be inappropriately allocated to one
single cash-generating unit.

5. The estimates used to measure the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit containing goodwill acquired in the business
combination may not be fully disclosed.

Analysis

1.

The company did not, in a business combination, recognize separately
the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities acquired according to
paragraphs 36 and 37 of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 3
(Revised) Business Combinations.
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Operations Review continued)
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2. The company did not, in a business combination,
deferred tax liabilities on the taxable temporary differences arising
from the fair value adjustments on the intangible assets acquired
according to paragraphs 19 and 66 of Hong Kong Accounting

Standard 12 Income Taxes.

3. The company did not properly allocate the fair value of the convertible
bonds issued for the business combination among the liability
component, the conversion option and the early redemption option
according to paragraphs 31 and 32 of HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Disclosure and Presentation.

4. The company inappropriately allocated the goodwill acquired in the
business combination to one single cash-generating unit which was
larger than an operating segment. There was non-compliance with
paragraph 80 of HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets (HKAS 36).

5. The company did not properly disclose the estimates used to measure
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit containing
goodwill acquired in the business combination according to paragraph

134 of HKAS 36.

Conclusions

The company had retrospectively corrected the above non-compliance
with accounting requirements in the consolidated financial statements
that were issued after the receipt of the draft enquiry report.

Reminders

Preparers of financial statements should ensure that:

e the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree acquired in a business combination

shall be recognized separately from goodwill;

e the initial carrying amount of a compound financial instrument shall
be properly allocated to its equity, liability and derivative components;

and

e for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, each of the acquirer’s
cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is so allocated shall not be

larger than an operating segment.

74 Financial Reporting Council
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Case 2

Fair value measurement of the purchase considerations
and the recognition of deferred tax liabilities in business
combinations

Background

The company did not measure the purchase considerations at their
acquisition-date fair values and did not recognize the deferred tax
liabilities on the taxable temporary differences arising from the fair
value adjustments on the intangible assets acquired in two business
combinations.

Issues

Whether the auditor had planned and performed the audit to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support their unmodified audit
opinion.

Analysis

The auditor failed in the following respects to plan and perform the audit
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support their audit
opinion on the financial statements, in particular, the auditor failed to:

e develop and document a proper audit plan in relation to the
business combinations, including the nature, timing and extent of
audit procedures to be performed, with an attitude of professional
skepticism recognizing that circumstances might exist that would
cause the financial statements to be materially misstated;

e obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to identify, or to address
appropriately, the non-compliances with accounting requirements;

e perform sufficient audit procedures to evaluate the valuer’s work as
audit evidence; and

* prepare audit documentation that provided a sufficient and appropriate
record of the basis for the auditor’s report and evidence that the audit
was performed according to auditing standards and applicable legal
and regulatory requirements.

The engagement partner and the engagement quality control reviewer
failed to act diligently according to the applicable technical and professional
standards when providing professional services in the audit.
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Operations Review coninued
EEEE @

Decision
There were auditing irregularities and the investigation report has been
referred to the HKICPA.

Reminder

Auditors should plan and perform their audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support their opinion on the financial
statements, and act diligently in accordance with the applicable technical
and professional standards when providing professional services.

Case 3
Engagement quality control review

Background

An investigation relating to the recognition and measurement of the
employee share options in a company’s financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2007, 2008 and 2009 was completed in 2012. It
was found that (i) the company did not recognize and measure these
share options in accordance with the applicable accounting standard;
and (i) the auditor did not properly evaluate the fair value measurement
of these share options and accordingly, failed to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support the fair value measurement.

Issue

Whether the engagement quality control reviewers for the audits of the
relevant financial statements had properly performed their engagement
quality control reviews in order to identity the above-mentioned
accounting non-compliances.

Analysis

1. The engagement partner failed to appoint engagement quality control
reviewers for the audits of the company’s financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2008.

2. The engagement quality control reviewer appointed for the audit of the
company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
failed to identify that the employee share options were not measured
in accordance with the applicable accounting standard at initial
recognition during his engagement quality control review. Therefore,
he failed to properly perform the engagement quality control review
and act diligently in accordance with the applicable technical and
professional standards during that audit.

Financial Reporting Council
2014 Annual Report
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Decision
There were auditing irregularities and the investigation report has been
referred to the HKICPA for follow-up.

Reminders

1. Engagement partners should appoint engagement quality control
reviewers for the audits of the financial statements of listed
companies.

2. Engagement quality control reviewers should perform an objective
evaluation of the significant judgments that the engagement team
made and the conclusions reached, and be satisfied that the
conclusions reached are appropriate and in accordance with the
applicable technical and professional standards.

Case 4
Using the work of valuation expert as audit evidence

Background

The company engaged an independent professional valuer to assess
the fair values of its mining rights at the end of the reporting period for
impairment review. As a result, the company had written back part of the
previously recognized impairment losses. The auditor had placed reliance
on the valuations, used the valuation results as audit evidence and
concurred with the management on the carrying amounts of the mining
rights.

Issue
Whether the auditor had sufficiently evaluated the appropriateness of the
assumptions and source data used in the valuations.

Analysis

The investigation revealed that the auditor failed to evaluate the
appropriateness of the valuer's work as audit evidence. Specifically, the
auditor did not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on evaluation
of (a) the relevance and reasonableness of the assumptions and method
used; and (b) the relevance, completeness, and accuracy of the source
data used in the valuations. The auditor also failed to document or to
document sufficiently the details of their discussions with the company’s
management and other audit procedures performed regarding the
significant assumptions used in the valuations.

The engagement partner and the engagement quality control reviewer
failed to maintain professional knowledge and skills, and act diligently
according to the applicable technical and professional standards during
that audit.
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Operations Review continued
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Decision
There were auditing irregularities and the investigation report has been
referred to the HKICPA for follow-up.

Reminders
The auditor should:

e perform audit procedures to evaluate the appropriateness of an
expert’s work as audit evidence for the relevant assertion;

e prepare sufficient audit documentation that enable an experienced
auditor, having no previous connection with the audit, to understand
the results of the audit procedures performed, the audit evidence
obtained and the conclusion reached; and

e document discussions of significant matters with management,

those charged with governance, and others, including the nature

of the significant matters discussed and when and with whom the
discussions took place.

Case 5
Accounting for embedded derivatives and subsequent
measurement of available-for-sale financial assets

Background

The company had investments in the convertible bonds which were
accounted for as available-for-sale financial assets with changes in fair
value recognized in other comprehensive income.

The convertible bonds were measured at fair value upon initial
recognition but they were not measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period.

The convertible bonds contained embedded call options granting the
company the right to convert the bonds into the shares of the issuers
at any time before the maturity date. Notwithstanding the fact that the
economic characteristics and risks of the conversion options of the
convertible bonds were not closely related to the host debt contract, the
company did not separate the conversion options from the host contract
and account for them as derivatives which should be presented as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Issue

Whether the auditor had properly evaluated the accounting of the
available-for-sale financial assets to determine if it was in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Financial Reporting Council
2014 Annual Report
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Analysis
The auditor failed to:

e critically evaluate whether the management of the company had
appropriately applied the requirements of the applicable financial
reporting framework;

e perform additional audit procedures to resolve the inconsistencies in
the audit evidence obtained from different sources; and

e evaluate or sufficiently evaluate the accuracy of certain source data
and the reasonableness of certain significant assumptions used in
determining the fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets
upon initial recognition.

The engagement quality control reviewer did not properly perform the
engagement quality control review as he failed to identify the above
deficiencies during his review of the audit working papers.

Both the engagement partner and the engagement quality control
reviewer failed to act diligently according to the applicable technical and
professional standards when providing professional services in the audit.

Decision
There were auditing irregularities and the investigation report has been
referred to the HKICPA for follow-up.

Reminders

Auditors should critically evaluate whether the management of the
company had appropriately applied the requirements of the applicable
financial reporting framework and determine what modifications
or additions to audit procedures are necessary to resolve any
inconsistencies in the audit evidence obtained from different sources.

When using the work of the management’s expert as audit evidence,
auditors should also evaluate the accuracy of the source data and the
reasonableness of significant assumptions involved.
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Operations Review continued
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FRC Decisions

This section comprises decisions on cases which did not require
investigations or enquiries. This aims to enhance our transparency and
market understanding of the best practice in applying accounting and
auditing standards. The FRC issued nine FRC Decisions in 2014.

Decision 1
Disclosure relating to income tax expenses and cost of sales

Issues
1. An explanation of the relationship between tax expenses and
accounting profit was not disclosed.

2. Components of cost of sales were not disclosed.

Analysis

1. The company did not disclose a reconciliation between tax expense
and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable
tax rate to explain the relationship between its tax expense and
accounting profit as required in ASBE 18.

2. Cost of sales was a significant item in the company’s financial
statements. The disclosure of components of cost of sales would be
meaningful to the financial statements users.

ASBE Basic Standards requires the disclosure of information that
influence economic decisions made by financial statements users.

Decision

The company failed to fully comply with the disclosure requirements in
ASBE 18 and ASBE Basic Standards, and we issued a letter of advice to
the company to this effect.

Reminder
Management of listed entities should observe the requirements of ASBE
18 and ASBE Basic Standards when preparing their financial statements.

Decision 2

Disclosure for various items

Issues

The following disclosure deficiencies were noted from the review of the

financial statements:

1. The accounting policy for the special reserve was not disclosed.
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. The required disclosures for construction contracts were not fully

provided.

. There were inconsistencies in disclosures between the Chinese-

version financial statements and their English translation.

. The required disclosures for financial risk management (such as

market risk and liquidity risk) were not fully provided.

. Certain notes to the financial statements could not be reconciled.

Analysis

1.

ASBE Basic Standards requires the disclosure of information that
is useful for understanding the financial statements. The company
should disclose the accounting policy for the special reserve.

. The company disclosed construction contracts as part of its

inventories without further disclosures. However, ASBE 15 requires
specific disclosures on construction contracts, such as information
about each contract’s amount and the method used to recognize the
construction progress, etc.

. A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting

profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate was presented in the
Chinese-version financial statements but omitted in their English
translation.

. In presenting the liquidity risk analysis, the company used the discounted

cash flows for the long-term borrowings, such practice is not in
compliance with ASBE 37, which requires presenting the liquidity risk
analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash flows.

. The company did not disclose the following items for market risk as

required by ASBE 37:

® a sensitivity analysis for each type of market risk to which the
company is exposed at the end of the reporting period, showing
how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by changes
in the relevant risk variable that were reasonably possible at that
date; and

* the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis; and changes from the previous period in the methods and
assumptions used, and the reasons for such changes.

. Certain notes to the financial statements could not be fully reconciled.

Companies are required to present information in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information in the financial statements.
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Operations Review continued
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Decision

The company failed to fully comply with the disclosure and presentation
requirements in ASBE Basic Standards and other related ASBE. We issued
a letter of advice to the company to this effect.

Reminder

Management of listed entities should observe all the disclosure and
presentation requirements of ASBE Basic Standards and other related
ASBE and to ensure the consistency of their financial statements.

Decision 3
Disclosure relating to intangible assets and operating segments

Issues

1. The comparative information for reconciliation of carrying amount
of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the year was not
disclosed.

2. Insufficient disclosure of operating segments.

Analysis

1. The company had disclosed a reconciliation of the carrying amount of
its intangible assets at the beginning and end of the current year. The
comparative information for this reconciliation was not disclosed.

ASBE 30 requires the disclosure of comparative information in respect
of the previous year for all amounts reported in the current period’s
financial statements.

2. The company also failed to disclose the following items which are
required by ASBE Interpretation 3:

e factors used to identify the entity’s reportable segments, types of
products and services under each reportable segment;

e a measure of profit or loss, total assets and liabilities for each
reportable segment and the relevant accounting policies applied;

e revenues from external customers (i) attributed to the entity’s
country of domicile and (i) attributed to all foreign countries in total
from which the entity derives revenues; and

e non-current assets other than financial instruments and deferred
tax assets (i) located in the entity’s country of domicile and (ii)
located in all foreign countries in total in which the entity holds
assets.
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Decision
The company failed to comply with ASBE 30 and ASBE Interpretation 3,
and we issued a letter of advice to the company to this effect.

Reminder
Management of listed entities should observe the requirements of ASBE
30 and ASBE Interpretation 3 when preparing their financial statements.

Decision 4
Recognition and measurement of fair value changes of
available-for-sale financial assets

Issue
Incorrect adjustment was made to reclassify the cumulative fair value
losses in available-for-sale fair value reserve to accumulated losses.

Analysis

An adjustment was made to reclassify the cumulative fair value losses
in available-for-sale fair value reserve to accumulative losses, but the
available-for-sale financial asset was neither impaired nor derecognized.

HKAS 39 requires fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets
to be accumulated in the available-for-sale fair value reserve except for
impairment losses. When the available-for-sale financial asset is impaired
or derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in available-for-sale fair
value reserve shall be reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Hence, the reclassification adjustment should not be made.

Decision

The company failed to comply with HKAS 39 but the non-compliance
merely represented an immaterial reclassification within the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, and a prior year adjustment was
subsequently made to correct the non-compliance. Hence, this issue
was not pursued further.

Reminder
Management of listed entities should observe the requirements of HKAS
39 when preparing their financial statements.
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Operations Review coninued
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Decision 5
Recognition of bonus payment

Issue
The bonus payments should be recognized in financial statements
instead of restating comparatives.

Analysis

The 2013 Financial Statements contained retrospective restatements to
correct prior period errors in respect of the non-recognition of bonus
payments in 2010 and 2011.

HKAS 19 requires an entity to recognize bonus payments when it has
the present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation
exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the
payments.

According to the relevant service/employment contracts, the company
did not have a legal or constructive obligation under HKAS 19 to make
the bonus payments until 2013.

Hence, there should be no prior period errors under HKAS 8 in the 2010
Financial Statements and the 2011 Financial Statements. Instead of
restating comparatives, the bonus payments should be recognized in the
2013 financial statements.

Decision

The company failed to comply with HKAS 8 and HKAS 19 but the non-
compliances were not material to the financial statements. Hence, this
issue was not pursued further.

Reminder
Management of listed entities should observe the requirements of HKAS
8 and HKAS 19 when preparing their financial statements.

Decision 6
Measurement of consideration shares and contingent
consideration and the retranslation and impairment of goodwill

Issues

1. A prior period restatement was made in the 2012 Financial
Statements. The acquisition-date published price of the company’s
shares instead of the issue price should be used to measure the
fair value of the consideration shares (the Consideration Shares)
issued for the acquisition of a subsidiary (the Acquisition) in the 2009
Financial Statements.
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2. The prior period restatement had also corrected that the contingent
consideration for the Acquisition (the Contingent Consideration) should
have been recognized in the year ended 31 December 2010, because
the condition for the recognition of the Contingent Consideration was
fulfilled during the year ended 31 December 2010. Moreover, the
Contingent Consideration should have been measured at fair value in
the 2010 Financial Statements.

3. The prior period restatement had also corrected that certain
impairment losses should have been made to the goodwill as at 31
December 2010 and also there were certain retranslation on the
carrying amount of goodwill that should be made as at 1 January
2011 and 31 December 2011.

Analysis

1. The Consideration Shares were measured at the issue price, which
was immaterially different from the daily mid price and the closing
price at the date of the Acquisition. We considered that there is no
material non-compliance with accounting requirements.

2. The auditor of the 2010 and 2011 Financial Statements, Auditor
A, issued a disclaimer of opinion in relation to the circumstances
surrounding the Contingent Consideration. The timing of recognition
of the Contingent Consideration involved judgment. Hence, there is
no apparent auditing irregularity on the audits of the 2010 and 2011
Financial Statements by Auditor A and the audit of the 2012 Financial
Statements by Auditor B. Since the terms for the preferred shares of
the company to be issued as Contingent Consideration were almost
the same as the ordinary shares, the company used the share price
of the ordinary shares to determine the share price of the Contingent
Consideration which was not unreasonable.

3. Based on the above analysis and Auditor A disclaiming their opinion
in relation to the carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December
2011, there is no apparent auditing irregularity on the retranslation
and impairment of goodwill arising from the Acquisition in the 2009,
2010 and 2011 Financial Statements.
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Operations Review coninued
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Decision

There was no material non-compliance with accounting requirement or
apparent auditing irregularity on the audits of the 2009, 2010 and 2011

Financial Statements in these respects, hence, we did not pursue further.

Reminder

The management of listed entities should observe the requirements of
HKFRS 3 when measuring the fair value of the consideration shares and

recognizing and measuring the contingent consideration.

Decision 7
Recognition of impairment losses, calculation of diluted loss
per share and recognition of deferred tax liabilities

Issues

1. No impairment losses were recognized on the interests in subsidiaries

and amounts due from subsidiaries.

2. The potential shares on exercise of share options were not included in

the calculation of diluted loss per share.

3. No deferred tax liabilities were recognized in respect of the fair value
adjustments on certain items of intangible assets and property, plant

and equipment arising from a business combination.

. Given the above possible non-compliance with accounting
requirements, the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements might
not be appropriate.

Analysis
1. The total equity of the group was less than the total equity of the

company. The interests in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries might have been impaired.

Since the subsidiaries generated positive operating cash flows and
the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries exceeded their carrying
amount, there is no objective evidence suggesting that the interests
in subsidiaries and the amounts due from subsidiaries were impaired
under HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 respectively.

2. The company did not include the potential shares on exercise of share

options in the calculation of diluted loss per share, even though they
were in the money.
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The group incurred a loss. Although the outstanding share options
were in the money, the potential shares on exercise of the share
options would increase the denominator of diluted loss per share and
thus would reduce the loss per share (i.e. be anti-dilutive). Hence,
there was no apparent non-compliance with HKAS 33.

3. Upon a business combination, the group made fair value adjustments
on certain items of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
but no deferred tax liabilities were recognized.

Intangible assets

As the group acquired and held the intangible assets (with indefinite
useful lives) for long term and operational purpose, the future gain on
disposal will be capital in nature. Since there is no capital gains tax
under Hong Kong tax law, no deferred tax liabilities were recognized.
There was no apparent non-compliance with HKAS 12.

Property, plant and equipment

The deferred tax liabilities on the temporary differences arising from
the fair value adjustments on property, plant and equipment were
immaterial to the consolidated financial statements. Hence, the issue
was not further pursued.

Decisions
1. There were no apparent non-compliance with HKAS 36 and HKAS 39.
Hence, the issue was not pursued further.

2. There was no apparent non-compliance with HKAS 33 and the issue
was not pursued further.

3. There were no deferred tax liabilities on the temporary differences
arising from the fair value adjustments on certain intangible assets.

The deferred tax liabilities on the temporary differences arising from
the fair value adjustments on property, plant and equipment were
immaterial. Hence, there was no material non-compliance with HKAS
12 and the issue was not pursued further.

4. Since there was no material non-compliance with accounting
standards, there is no evidence suggesting that there were auditing
irregularities.
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Operations Review coninued
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Reminder

Management of listed entities should observe the requirements of HKAS
36, HKAS 39, HKAS 33 and HKAS 12 when preparing their financial
statements.

Decision 8
Apportionment of initial public offering (IPO) expenses

Issue
Classification of listing expenditures as equity or expense.

Analysis

At the relevant time, there was considerable diversity of practice in the
market place regarding the recognition of listing costs in profit and loss or
equity. The diversity mainly appears when professional judgment needs to
be applied on interpreting the definitions of certain terms used in paragraphs
37 and 38 of HKAS 32, including the definitions of “equity transaction”,
“incremental” and “directly attributable” as stated in paragraph 37 of HKAS
32. There is also divergent opinion on the allocation basis of the transaction
costs that relate jointly to the listing of shares and the share offer as
mentioned in paragraph 38 of HKAS 32.

The issues have been previously raised to the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee but it declined to provide additional
clarification beyond guidance that already existed in HKAS 32. At least
two of the three key questions remain unanswered and continue to be
subject to professional judgement and interpretation.

The FRSC held a number of meetings to discuss this issue and the
HKICPA published an article offering guidance on this issue in the June
2014 edition of APlus magazine.

Decision
No further action was taken against the parties as there was
considerable diversity of practice in the market at the relevant time.

Reminders

Reporting accountants involved in potential listings are reminded to note
the abovementioned article, which sets out examples of costs that are
typically incurred in an IPO, and analyses whether these costs could be
regarded as:

e ‘“incremental costs directly attributable” to the issuance of new shares
during the IPO and thus be deducted from equity;
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e relating solely to listing or other activities undertaken at the same time
as the share issue which should be expensed; or

e costs that relate jointly to both the issuance of new shares and the
listing of existing shares which should be allocated in accordance with
paragraph 38 of HKAS 32.

Decision 9
Disclosure on business combinations

Issue
Inadequate disclosures on business combinations in the 2011 Financial
Statements.

Analysis

The company acquired several subsidiaries during the reporting period.
For each business combination, the company only disclosed part of the
information required in paragraph B64 of HKFRS 3 (Revised) in the 2011
Financial Statements. Specifically, the company failed to describe factors
that make up the recognized goodwill and the details of the contingent
consideration arrangements relating to the business combinations.
Although certain related information were included in the chairman’s
statement and the management discussion and analysis section of the
company’s annual report, they were not part and parcel of the relevant
financial statements and were not covered by the financial reporting
standards.

Decision

The company failed to fully comply with the disclosure requirements of
HKFRS 3 (Revised) in the preparation of the 2011 Financial Statements. We
wrote to the company to highlight the disclosure deficiencies.

Reminders

Management of listed entities should observe the disclosure requirements
of HKFRS 3 (Revised) and ensure that the required disclosures were
included in the financial statements to assist readers to understand the
relevant transactions.
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Honorary
Advisory Panel

REREE

Honorary Advisory Panel is established to assist the FRC in discharging
its functions and responsibilities arising from or in relation to the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap 588). The function of the Honorary
Advisers is to advise the FRC, including its committees and staff, with
respect to any matter referred to the Honorary Advisers by the FRC.

The Panel Members are:
Mr Nicholas Allen

Mr Roger Best, JP!

Mr Stephen Chang

Dr Moses Cheng, GBS, JP
Mr Francis Ching

Mr Martin Hadaway, JP

Dr PM Kam

Mr Edward Kwan, MH

Mr Albert Li

Dr Eric Li, GBS, JP

Mr Tim Lui, BBS, JP

Ms Teresa Ma'

Mr Michael Scales

Mr John E Strickland, GBS, JP'
Mr Stephen Taylor

" From 15 January 2015.
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Membership of
Board and Panels

ZEEREEEKE

Financial Reporting Review Panel
Panel Convenors

Mr Robert Gazzi

Mr Andrew Mak, JP

Ms Catherine Morley

Ms Edith Shih

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP

Prof Wong Tak Jun

Members

Mr Jamie Allen

Prof Gary Biddle

Mr Albert Chan

Ms Mabel Chan

Mr Morison Chan
Prof Kevin Chen

Prof Peter Cheng

Mr Ambrose Cheung, MH, JP
Ms Ivy Cheung

Mr Cheung Kwan Hoi
Mr Mohan Datwani
Ms Ding Chen

Mr Vincent Duhamel
Mr lan Farrar

Ms Cindy Fu

Mr Eugene Fung, SC
Mr Paul Hebditch

Mr Nelson Lam

Ms Rosita Lee

Mr Alden Leung

Mr Andrew Leung, JP
Ms Cynthia Lim

Mr William Lim

Prof Lin Zhijun

Ms Alexandra Lo

Mr Hong Ng

Ms Melissa Pang, MH, JP
Mr Paul Phenix

Mr Gary Poon

Mr Paul Shieh, SC
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Membership of Board and Panels continued
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Ms Teo Chew Ping
Ms Anna Wong

Mr Wong Kim Man
Ms Priscilla Wong, JP
Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Thomas Wong

Ms Wendy Yung

Audit Investigation Board
Chairman
Mr Mark Dickens, JP (ex-officio)

Members

Mr TS Chan

Ms Wincey Lam
Ms Anna Lau

Ms Florence Wong
Ms Joyce Woo

Process Review Panel
Chairman

Mr Anthony Chow, SBS, JP?

Mr Edmund Leung, SBS, JP?

Members

Ms Florence Chan?®

Ms Angelina Kwan

Mr Vincent Kwan

Ms Elizabeth Law, MH, JP?
Prof Low Chee Keong?®

Dr John Poon, JP (ex-officio)

" Appointed as Member until 31 December 2014, then as Chairman on 1

January 2015.
2 Expired on 31 December 2014.
¢ Appointed on 1 January 2015.
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Corporate Information

Financial Reporting Council

29th Floor, High Block
Queensway Government Offices
66 Queensway, Hong Kong
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Tel E&E : (852) 2810 6321
Fax & : (852) 2810 6320
Email & : general@frc.org.hk
Website #84F : www.frc.org.hk
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